
 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, October 28, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon 
See Zoom Meeting Info on Page 2 

AMENDED 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m.  
2. City/Citizen Comments:  Individuals may address the Board on issues not on the agenda 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not already on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables 
b. Minutes:  September 16th  
c. Defined Contribution Retirement Plan Agreement with Edward Jones 

5. Business Items 
a. Acknowledge upcoming retirements:  Diane Kilkenny, Interim Public Health 

Director and Alan Gregory, Public Works Foreman 
b. Comment Letters to the Energy Facility Siting Council Regarding the Carty 

Generating Station Request for Amendment 2 & Draft Proposed Order, and 
Wheatridge II Request to Amend Site Certificate (Tamra Mabbott, Planning 
Director) 

c. Public Health Department Memorandums of Understanding with Community 
Based Organizations – Doulas Latinas International and Euvalcree (Diane 
Kilkenny, Interim Public Health Director) 

d. Review Registered Nurse Supervisor Job Description (Lindsay Grogan, Human 
Resources 

e. Wheatridge Project – Agreement on Procedural Issues for Partial Assignments 
(Darrell Green, Administrator) 

f. Cattle Guard Procurement (Matt Scrivner, Public Works)  
g. Notice of Grant Opportunity for Off-System Paths (Gregg Zody, Community 

Development Director) 
h. Morrow County Emergency Operations Center Update 
i. Irrigon Building Update (Darrell Green, Administrator) 
j. Association of Oregon Counties Virtual Annual Conference and November 18th 

BOC Meeting 
6. Department Reports 

a. Road Department Monthly Report (Eric Imes) 
b. Clerk’s Quarterly Report (Bobbi Childers) 
c. Human Resources Quarterly Report (Lindsay Grogan) 
d. Surveyor’s Quarterly Report (Stephen Haddock) 
e. Public Health Department Quarterly Report (Diane Kilkenny) 
f. Weed Department Quarterly Report (Written Only) 

7. Correspondence 
8. Commissioner Reports  
9. Executive Session: Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) – To consult with counsel concerning 

the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation 



 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 

likely to be filed 
10. Executive Session:  Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) – To conduct deliberations with 

persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property transactions 
11. Signing of documents 
12. Adjournment 
 

 
Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the 
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday.  If something urgent comes up after this 
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about 
items listed on the agenda, please contact Darrell J. Green, Administrator at (541) 676-2529. 
 

Zoom Meeting Information 
 

Join Zoom Meeting:  https://zoom.us/j/5416762546 
 
PASSWORD:  97836 Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only: 

• 1-346-248-7799, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546#  
• 1-669-900-6833, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546#  
• 1-312-626-6799, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-929-436-2866, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-253-215-8782, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-301-715-8592, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 

 
 
 
 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc
https://zoom.us/j/5416762546


































































































































































































































1

BEFORE THE OREGON WATER RESOURCES COMMISSION 

PETITION FOR RULE AMENDMENT 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The undersigned conservation, family farm, public health, rural advocacy, 

animal welfare, and wildlife protection organizations (Petitioners)—on behalf of 

themselves and their thousands of members and supporters in the State of 

Oregon—file this Petition for Rule Amendment (Petition) pursuant to ORS 

183.390(1), OAR 137-001-0070, and OAR 690-001-0005, to request that the Oregon 

Water Resources Commission (Commission) amend its 1976 Findings, Conclusions, 

and Order on the Question of Determination of a Critical Ground Water Area in the 

Ordnance Area, Morrow and Umatilla Counties, Oregon (Order) to prohibit, as of 

the date of this Petition, new or expanded use of groundwater in excess of 5,000 

gallons per day under the stockwatering exemption1 in the Ordnance Basalt Critical 

Groundwater Area (Basalt CGWA) and the Ordnance Gravel Critical Groundwater 

Area (Gravel CGWA) (collectively, Ordnance CGWAs).2 

II. PETITIONERS

Stand Up to Factory Farms is an Oregon-based coalition of local, state, and 

national organizations concerned about the harmful impacts of mega-dairies3 on 

Oregon’s family farms, communities, environment, and animal welfare. Among our 

concerns about new and expanding mega-dairies are significant new uses of 

groundwater that the Order currently allows under the stockwatering exemption to 

state permitting requirements, which allows new groundwater permits in 

groundwater-restricted areas otherwise closed to new groundwater permits, and 

prevents the new uses from being reviewed for impacts to public welfare, safety, 

and health.4 

Stand Up to Factory Farms comprises the following organizations: Columbia 

Riverkeeper, Food & Water Watch, WaterWatch of Oregon, Friends of Family 

1 ORS 537.545(1)(a). This petition does not propose to limit other exempt uses, such as 

use for “domestic purposes” including “domestic animal consumption.” ORS 537.545(1)(d); 

OAR 690-300-0010(14). The proposed limit of 5,000 gallons per day is the same as the limit 

for exempt industrial and commercial use. ORS 537.545(1)(f). 
2 OR. WATER RES. DEP’T, FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS, AND ORDER ON THE QUESTION OF 

DETERMINATION OF A CRITICAL GROUND WATER AREA IN THE ORDNANCE AREA, MORROW 

AND UMATILLA COUNTIES, OREGON 60 (Apr. 2, 1976) (Order) (stockwater exemption applies 

in Gravel CGWA); id. at 64 (stockwater exemption also applies in Basalt CGWA). 
3 Stand Up to Factory Farms defines a “mega dairy” as a dairy having 2,500 or more 

cows. 
4 ORS 537.545(1)(a); ORS 537.621(2) (describing groundwater permit review). 



 

 2

Farmers, Center for Food Safety, Center for Biological Diversity, Farm Forward, 

Animal Legal Defense Fund, Humane Voters Oregon, Friends of the Columbia 

Gorge, and Oregon Rural Action. Collectively these groups represent millions of 

members and supporters nationwide, including over 100,000 in Oregon. 

 

III. REQUEST TO THE COMMISSION 

 

Petitioners request that the Commission prohibit new or expanded exempt 

uses for stockwatering in the Ordnance CGWAs, effective as of the date of this 

Petition. 

 

Currently, the Order at page 60 states: 

 

To properly provide for the public welfare, safety, and 

health, the rights to appropriate ground water and priority 

therefore must be acknowledged and protected and reasonably 

stable ground water levels must be determined and maintained. 

To accomplish this, further development of the alluvial aquifer 

system must be prohibited within the Ordnance gravel ground 

water area by additional wells except for those which are exempt 

from filing for water rights in accordance with ORS 537.545: 

“ * * * for stock-watering purposes, . . . * * * *” 

 

 At page 64 it similarly states,  

 

To properly provide for the public welfare, safety, and 

health, the rights to appropriate ground water from the deep and 

shallow ground water zones within the basalt formation within 

the Ordnance basalt ground water area as delineated in Plate 

1 must be acknowledged and protected and reasonably stable 

ground water levels must be determined and maintained. To 

accomplish this further development of the shallow or deep 

aquifer system must be prohibited within the basalts of the 

delineated area by additional wells which are not exempt from 

filing for water rights in accordance with ORS 537.545. 

 

 Petitioners request that the Commission amend the Order by rule to limit 

further development of groundwater in the Ordnance CGWAs under the 

stockwatering exemption, thereby requiring significant new or expanded livestock 

operations in the CGWAs to use a source other than groundwater or go through a 

transfer process to use existing groundwater rights (provided it can be done without 

injury to existing uses and otherwise in compliance with law). Pursuant to OAR 

137-001-0070(1)(a), Petitioners attach the existing Order hereto as Attachment A 



 

 3

and propose to add the following, by rule, as additional language at the end of the 

Order: 

 

Effective [date of Petition], the Ordnance Gravel Critical Ground 

Water Area and the Ordnance Basalt Critical Ground Water Area 

are closed to further appropriation of ground water in excess of 

5,000 gallons per day under the “stockwatering” exemption in 

ORS 537.545(1)(a).  

 

IV. COMMISSION AUTHORITY 

 

The Commission is responsible for setting the policies for the operation of the 

Water Resources Department (Department),5 and is authorized to formulate and 

implement an integrated, coordinated state water resources policy.6 The 

Commission must “progressively formulate plans and programs to develop the 

water resources of the state and provide for the enforcement of state water policy[,]” 

which must, among other things, protect existing water rights and “protect and 

promote the general public welfare.”7  

  

The Commission must also, in accordance with the relevant portions of the 

Oregon Administrative Procedure Act, “adopt rules and standards” to perform its 

legal duties.8 Since 1991, the Commission has been vested with authority to adopt 

rules designating critical groundwater areas,9 including rules that restrict water 

use—even exempt water use—within such areas.10 The Commission is also vested 

with authority to amend any such rules.11  

 

An interested person may petition the Commission to promulgate, amend, or 

repeal a rule designating a critical groundwater area.12 The Commission has 90 

days to either deny the petition in writing or initiate the requested rulemaking.13 In 

reviewing a petition the Commission shall consider, among other things, options for 

achieving the existing rule’s substantive goals while reducing the negative economic 

impact on businesses; the continued need for and complexity of the existing rule; 

 

5  ORS 536.025(1). 
6  OAR 690-400-0000(2) (citing ORS 536.220). 
7  Id. 
8  ORS 536.027. The Commission is specifically tasked with adopting and enforcing 

rules necessary to carry out the provisions of the Ground Water Act of 1955. ORS 

537.780(1)(h); see ORS 537.505. 
9  ORS 537.730(1); see ORS 183.335. Prior to 1991, the Director of the Department 

could declare a critical groundwater area by order. See ORS 537.735(1) (1957). The Director 

could also amend such orders. See id. 537.740(2) (1957). 
10  ORS 537.735(3)(a), (d); ORS 690-250-0130. 
11  ORS 183.335; OAR 690-001-0000. 
12  ORS 183.390. 
13  ORS 183.390(1). 



 

 4

the extent to which the existing rule overlaps, duplicates, or conflicts with other 

state or federal rules and with local government regulations; the nature of any 

complaints or comments received from the public about the rule; and the degree to 

which technology, economic conditions or other factors have changed in the subject 

area affected by the rule.14 The Commission may restrict groundwater use in an 

area where it has substantial evidence to justify the restriction.15  

 

V. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

 

A. The Order 

  

In 1976, the Director of the Department issued the Order—pursuant to the 

Groundwater Act of 195516—designating the Ordnance CGWAs.17 Both CGWAs are 

located in a region near the town of Ordnance, Oregon18 and within portions of 

Morrow and Umatilla Counties.19 The Director issued the Order “[t]o properly 

provide for the public welfare, safety, and health”20 and to address groundwater 

level declines in the region.21 The Basalt CGWA protects the Columbia River Basalt 

Group Aquifers, and the Gravel CGWA protects a shallow sand and gravel 

aquifer.22  

 

The Order “prohibited new permitted uses in the [] Basalt CGWA and 

curtailed existing permitted uses in the [] Gravel CGWA to protect senior 

groundwater users.”23 But the Order specifically allowed for new exempt uses, 

which do not require a water appropriation permit.24 One such exempt use is for 

stockwatering, which allows limitless extraction.25  

 

14  ORS 183.390(3); OAR 137-001-0070, 690-001-0005. 
15  ORS 537.780(2)(a). 
16  Memorandum from Justin Iverson & Brenda Bateman to the Comm’n 1 (Mar. 15, 

2018) (Memorandum). In 1976, the Director could declare a critical groundwater area by 

order. and could also amend such orders. See ORS 537.735(1), 537.740(2) (1975). 
17  See Order, supra note 2. 
18  Ordnance is a ghost town today. See, e.g., Jade McDowell, Lost city, EAST 

OREGONIAN (May 12, 2018), https://www.eastoregonian.com/news/local/lost-

city/article_cc3bdb02-5671-5517-a9f3-19d1b31c9d54.html. 
19  Order, supra note 2; Memorandum, supra note 15, at Attachs. 5 & 6. 
20  Order, supra note 2, at 60. 
21  Memorandum, supra note 15, Attachs. 5 & 6; Letter from Mike Ladd to Greg te 

Velde (Feb. 5, 2016) (Ladd Letter) at 1 (noting that the Order was issued because 

“significant groundwater level declines indicated annual consumptive use exceeded natural 

recharge of the groundwater systems”). The Ladd Letter is attached hereto as Attachment 

B. 
22  Memorandum, supra note 15, Attachs. 5 & 6. 
23  Letter, supra note 20, at 1. 
24  Order, supra note 2, at 60; see OAR 537.545 (enumerating exempt uses). 
25  OAR 537.545(1)(a). 



 

 5

B. History and Current Status of the Animal Agriculture Industry 

in the Critical Groundwater Areas 

 

Much has changed in the animal agriculture industry—and in the dairy 

industry more specifically—since the Director issued the Order more than four 

decades ago. For example, in 1974, there were 216 farms in Morrow County with 

cows and calves.26 By 2017, there were only 160.27 Though the number of farms 

plummeted, the number of animals increased dramatically. In 1974, the county had 

38,258 total cows and calves.28 By 2017, the county had 149,340 total cows and 

calves.29  

 

The largest increase in the total number of cows and calves in the county 

occurred between 1997 and 2002, when the total number went from 50,282 to 

106,301 total cows and calves.30 This increase coincides with the introduction of 

mega-dairies—large-scale concentrated animal feeding operations (CAFOs) that 

confine thousands of cows to produce milk—to the region in the late 1990s.31  

 

1. Mega-Dairy Water Consumption in the Ordnance CGWAs 

 

Today, there are three mega-dairy sites within the Ordnance CGWAs: Sage 

Hollow Ranch (Sage Hollow), Meenderninck Dairy (Meenderninck), and the site of 

the former Lost Valley Farm (Lost Valley). Threemile Canyon Farms (Threemile)—

the largest mega-dairy in Oregon and in all of the United States32—is also located 

in Morrow County, though it lies just outside the Ordnance CGWAs. It is permitted 

to confine just over 90,000 cows on its 93,000-acre property.33 

 

26  USDA, 1974 CENSUS OF AGRICULTURE – COUNTY SUMMARY DATA, CATTLE AND 

CALVES – INVENTORY AND SALES, http://usda.mannlib.cornell.edu/usda/AgCensus 

Images/1974/01/37/306/Table-12.pdf (1974 Census). 
27  USDA, 2017 CENSUS OF AGRICULTURE – COUNTY DATA, CATTLE AND CALVES –  

INVENTORY AND SALES, http://usda.mannlib.cornell.edu/usda/AgCensusImages/ 

1974/01/37/306/Table-12.pdf (2017 Census). 
28  1974 Census, supra note 26.  
29  2017 Census, supra note 27. 
30  Compare USDA, 1997 CENSUS OF AGRICULTURE – COUNTY DATA, CATTLE AND 

CALVES – INVENTORY AND SALES, http://usda.mannlib.cornell.edu/usda/AgCensus 

Images/1997/01/37/1600/Table-14.pdf, with USDA, 2002 CENSUS OF AGRICULTURE – 

COUNTY DATA, CATTLE AND CALVES – INVENTORY AND SALES, http://usda.mannlib. 

cornell.edu/usda/AgCensusImages/2002/01/37/1704/Table-11.pdf. 
31  See, e.g., Letter from Meenderninck Dairy to Bureau of Land Management 2, 

https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2015r1/Downloads/CommitteeMeetingDocument/66978 (last 

visited Aug. 19, 2020) (noting Meenderninck Dairy was established in 1999).  
32  Bruce Shultz, Dairy producers need pricing overhaul plan, SYDNEY DAILY NEWS 

(Aug. 5, 2020), https://www.sidneydailynews.com/news/agriculture/ 

182277/dairy-producers-need-pricing-overhaul-plan. 
33  OR. DEP’T OF AGRIC., AFO Spreadsheet (Aug. 10, 2020) (on file with author). 



 

 6

All industrial animal agriculture facilities consume vast quantities of water, 

but publicly available groundwater data reveal that mega-dairies are particularly 

water-intensive, requiring even more water than cattle feedlots.34 The continued 

expansion of industrial dairy facilities, specifically, within the Ordnance CGWAs 

has exploited and will continue to exploit the aquifers. 

 

2. Lost Valley Farm 

 

The Lost Valley Farm mega-dairy was particularly destructive to 

groundwater resources. Greg te Velde opened Lost Valley—on a site only twelve 

miles from Threemile35—in 2017 after receiving a CAFO permit (technically a 

permit under the federal Clean Water Act) from the Oregon Department of 

Agriculture (ODA) and the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) to 

house up to 30,000 cows.36 Lost Valley was located within the Basalt CGWA and, 

based on proximity, appears to have drawn water from two wells located within the 

Ordnance and one well just outside; these wells are MORR52293 and MORR52393, 

and MORR52351, respectively. 

 

Lost Valley was a regulatory disaster from the start, as it spilled manure and 

other waste and violated its CAFO permit more than two hundred times.37 While it 

is no longer operational, a new owner is in the process of obtaining permits to 

reopen the site at nearly the same capacity as the former Lost Valley. 

 

In 2016, the Department sent a letter to Greg te Velde, informing him of 

groundwater conditions in the area and the potential for resource harm.38 First, the 

 

34  See, e.g. ONTARIO MINISTRY OF AGRIC., FOOD AND RURAL AFFAIRS, Water 

Requirements of Livestock (January 2019), 

http://www.omafra.gov.on.ca/english/engineer/facts/07-023.htm. 
35  FOOD & WATER WATCH ET AL., PUBLIC COMMENTS ON PROPOSED NPDES PERMIT FOR 

LOST VALLEY RANCH CAFO 14 (Aug. 4, 2016), http://www.friendsoffamilyfarmers.org/wp-

content/uploads/2016/08/FWW-et-al.-Lost-Valley-Ranch-NPDES-Comments-2.pdf. 
36  See Animal Waste Management Plan for Lost Valley Farm (July 5, 2017) (on file 

with author). 
37  See, e.g., Leah Douglas, Lost Valley debacle leads to effort to limit mega-dairies in 

Oregon, OREGON LIVE (Apr. 5, 2019), https://www.oregonlive.com/ 

business/2019/04/lost-valley-debacle-leads-to-effort-to-limit-mega-dairies-in-oregon.html; 

Tracy Loew, Oregon megadairy Lost Valley Farm fined $187,320 for 224 environmental 

violations, STATESMAN JOURNAL (Oct. 16, 2018), 

https://www.statesmanjournal.com/story/tech/science/environment/2018/10/16/oregon-

megadairy-lost-valley-farm-fined-environmental-violations/1659452002/; Tracy Loew, 

Oregon sues to shut down new mega-dairy, citing repeated manure spills, STATESMAN 

JOURNAL (Mar. 1, 2018), https://www.statesmanjournal.com/story/ 

tech/science/environment/2018/02/28/oregon-sues-shut-down-new-mega-dairy-citing-

repeated-manure-spills/381225002/. 
38  Ladd Letter, supra note 20, at 1. 



 

 7

letter noted that the Lost Valley site is located within the Basalt CGWA and less 

than one mile from the Gravel CGWA.39 Second, the letter explained that the total 

groundwater use within the Basalt CGWA in 2014 was documented as 

approximately 3,000 acre-feet per year, and that the groundwater levels were 

declining at a rate of two feet each year.40 “This indicates that the groundwater 

resource is beyond its capacity, is sensitive to overdraft, and that a sustainable new 

use is not available without injury to senior groundwater users.”41 Finally, the 

letter explained that Lost Valley’s dairy cows, who drink between 20 and 50 gallons 

of water per day, would lead to a 22% to 56% increase in groundwater use from the 

Basalt CGWA, which would be unsustainable.42  

 

ODA and DEQ acknowledged that Lost Valley would be using “a large 

amount of water,” but nonetheless decided to grant it a CAFO permit.43 Despite 

being apprised of the delicate condition of the Basalt CGWA, Lost Valley exploited 

the stockwater exemption without informing the state or recording the wells, as 

required by law.44 Lost Valley also continued to evade regulation of its water use 

despite the Department’s repeated attempts.45 Though it only reached one-third of 

its permitted size before it was shut down, Lost Valley was expected to eventually 

use close to one million gallons of water each day—without a water right—for its 

stockwatering.46  

 

Indeed, a review of the publicly available groundwater data—in the form of 

water rights applications or registrations of exempt use wells under ORS 537.545 

(5-7) and a total of 407 well reports within and surrounding the Ordnance CGWAs, 

including well reports containing the location, depth to water, type, and use of wells 

in and around the CGWAs—reveals that Lost Valley’s water consumption was 

significantly greater than that of other industrial dairies in the Ordnance CGWAs, 

 

39  Id. at 1. 
40  Id. 
41  Id. 
42  Id. at 2. 
43  OR. DEP’T OF AGRIC. & OR. DEP’T OF ENVTL. QUALITY, FREQUENTLY ASKED 

QUESTIONS, LOST VALLEY FARM CAFO PERMIT 2, 

https://www.oregon.gov/oda/programs/naturalresources/documents/ 

cafopublicnotices/lostvalleyfarm/lostvalleyfarmfaqs.pdf (last visited Aug. 19, 2020). 
44  Tracy Loew, State officials let mega-dairy use loophole to tap endangered Oregon 

aquifer, STATESMAN JOURNAL (Mar. 22, 2018), https://www. 

statesmanjournal.com/story/tech/science/environment/2018/03/22/lost-valley-mega-dairy-

oregon-used-loophole-tap-aquifier-allowed-state-officials/426738002/. 
45  See, e.g., OR. WATER RES. DEP’T, Overview of Water Rights Issues at Lost Valley 

Farm before the Senate Committee on Environment and Natural Resources 2, 

https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2017I1/Downloads/CommitteeMeetingDocument/148858. 
46  Lynne Terry, Is Oregon Paving the Way for More Mega-Dairies?, CIVIL EATS (June 

13, 2019), https://civileats.com/2019/06/13/is-oregon-paving-the-way-for-more-mega-dairies/; 

Loew, supra note 43; Ladd Letter, supra note 20, at 3.  



 

 8

and indeed skewed the water consumption trends upward for the Ordnance 

CGWAs, overall: 

 

 
 

 

By the Department’s own estimates, a 30,000-cow dairy facility would use 

between 672 and 1680 acre-feet of water per year for stockwatering alone.47 Thus, 

any future permitted facility with a herd of the same or greater size of Lost Valley’s 

is likely to continue this outsized rate of water consumption—at the aquifer’s 

expense.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

47 Ladd Letter, supra note 20, at 2. 



 

 9

C. Current and Future Hydrogeological Status of the Ordnance 

CGWAs 

 

Despite the Order’s designation of the Ordnance CGWAs in 1976, 

“groundwater overdraft continues to be a significant issue . . . reflected in the 

decreasing water levels in wells” across the region.48  

 

The Department is well aware that the “groundwater levels in the basalt are 

currently declining at a rate of about 2 feet per year” and that permitting a new 

CAFO would “represent a significant new use.”49 Indeed, published groundwater 

data from the Department indicate that groundwater levels in the Ordnance Deep 

Basalt aquifer—one of the Columbia River Basalt Group aquifers that the Basalt 

CGWA protects—have dropped more than 100 feet since 1976.50  

 

Static water elevations confirm that water levels have fallen over time, and 

that overdraft of this aquifer is consistent and ongoing.51 Published hydrographs 

from the Department52 show the historical depletion of this aquifer: 

 

 

 
 

48  OR. STATE U. INST. FOR WATER AND WATERSHEDS, UMATILLA SUB-BASIN DATA 

SYNTHESIS AND SUMMARY 16–17 (July 4, 2006), http://www.co.umatilla.or.us/ 

planning/pdf/Appendix%20M%20-%20Data%20Synthesis%20and%20Summary.pdf. 
49  Ladd Letter, supra note 20, at 2. 
50  Memorandum, supra note 15, at Attach. 5. Data collected from groundwater wells 

confirm this, showing that the water table has decreased between 44 feet (MORR 1660) and 

130 feet (MORR 598) since 1962. 
51  Id.  
52  Id. 



 

 10 

Individual wells within the Basalt CGWA tell the same story: 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 11 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 12 

Likewise, publicly available groundwater data from wells UMAT1580 and 

MORR938 indicate that groundwater levels in the Gravel CGWA have dropped 

between 4 and 222 feet since 1950. Published hydrographs from the Department53 

also show the historical depletion of this aquifer:  

 

 

 
 

 

 

While the groundwater data within this Ordnance does show some recovery 

due to artificial recharge, individual wells within it continue to show declines over 

time: 

 

 

 

53  Memorandum, supra note 15, at Attach. 6. 



 

 13 

 
 

 

 

 
 



 

 14 

 
 

 

 



 

 15 

 
 

 

 

   
 



 

 16 

 
 

  

 Thus, the current state of the aquifers makes clear they are at risk of 

over-extraction from further stockwatering uses within the Ordnance CGWAs, 

necessitating further restrictions to fulfill the purpose of the Order.  

 

VI. ARGUMENT 

 

The continued interest in new and expanded industrial livestock operations 

in the Ordnance CGWAs is endangering groundwater levels, and the Commission 

must intervene. Simply put, the Order’s inclusion of the stockwatering exemption 

renders it incapable of meaningfully protecting these endangered aquifers—which 

are invaluable public resources—from twenty-first century levels of industrial 

animal agriculture resource extraction.   

A. Options for achieving the Ordnance CGWAs’ substantive goals 

while reducing the negative economic impact on businesses 

The foregoing data demonstrate that the Order is failing to fulfill its purpose. 

The Director issued the Order “[t]o properly provide for the public welfare, safety, 

and health”54 and to address groundwater level declines in the region.55 Given the 

continued decline in groundwater levels since the enactment of the Order, it is clear 

that prohibiting new exempt use for stockwatering in the Ordnance CGWAs would 

 

54  Order, supra note 1, at 60. 
55  Memorandum, supra note 15, Attachs. 5 & 6; Letter, supra note 20, at 1 (noting that 

the Order was issued because “significant groundwater level declines indicated annual 

consumptive use exceeded natural recharge of the groundwater systems”). 



 

 17 

better fulfill the Commission’s resource management goals, including responsible 

groundwater management and conservation.  

Limiting new exempt use for stockwatering will enable the Commission to 

manage groundwater in the area responsibly. Under these limits, new and 

expanded mega-dairies that use groundwater in excess of 5,000 gallons per day in 

the Ordnance CGWAs would be required to either use a source other than 

groundwater or go through a transfer process to use existing groundwater rights for 

livestock watering. The transfer process will give the Department the opportunity 

to evaluate impacts these users have on the aquifers and other water users. 

Currently the Department does not have this opportunity with respect to 

stockwatering under a claim of exemption, which dampens the Commission’s ability 

to monitor extremely large groundwater users and to protect the public welfare, 

safety, and health. Closing the Ordnance CGWAs to significant new exempt 

stockwatering use would empower the Department and Commission to effectively 

manage users and groundwater levels in the Ordnance CGWAs. 

 

Likewise, limiting new exempt stockwatering use will provide the 

Department and Commission with the opportunity to further water conservation 

goals. By creating a mechanism by which new stockwatering use is evaluated 

against other users, the Department and Commission will have more 

comprehensive information and control, and will be able to conserve groundwater 

more effectively.   

It is also economically detrimental to allow new exempt stockwatering uses 

within the Ordnance CGWAs. The economic conditions in the Ordnance CGWAs are 

dependent upon adequate groundwater levels. Communities and businesses—

including existing water rights holders—will face economic hardships if their access 

to groundwater continues to dwindle due to increased regulation resulting from 

aquifer drawdowns and pumping cost increases. Businesses could close, leading to 

job losses and community members leaving the area. As Morrow County Planning 

Director Carla McLane stated, “[r]esidents are more concerned about water than 

air.”56 Thus, the Commission should limit new exempt stockwatering use so the 

Department can better manage available groundwater to prevent economic harm to 

communities and businesses. 

B. The continued need for the existing rule 

As explained above, when the Order was enacted in 1976 there were no 

industrial livestock operations in the area. Just two years before, the county had 

38,258 total cows and calves—a relatively low of number of animals pulling 

stockwater from the aquifer. Following the entry of mega-dairies into the area in 

 

56  OR. SUSTAINABILITY BOARD, Meeting Minutes (October 5, 2017) (statement of Carla 

McLane, Morrow County Planning Directory & Chair of the Transportation Committee). 



 

 18 

the late 1990s, the total number of cows and calves went from 50,282 in 1997 to 

106,301 in 2002.57 By 2017, the county had 149,340 total cows and calves; the 

number nearly quadrupled since the first mega-dairy appeared.58 The owners of 

Threemile Canyon alone have over 96,000, indicating just how much one new 

corporate actor can impact the region’s resources.59 

Thus, regardless of the sense it may have made in 1976 to continue to allow 

new exempt stockwatering uses in the Ordnance CGWAs, the current state of 

groundwater in the region now establishes that the continued new use of more than 

5,000 gallons per day of groundwater under the stockwatering exemption is no 

longer sustainable, and that the Commission needs to restrict further use of the 

exemption over this amount.   

C. The complexity of the existing rule 

The Order can be easily amended to limit the stockwatering exemption for 

new and expanded use while preserving existing uses and truly de minimis 

additions, as Petitioners assert supra in Section III. The Department’s current 

monitoring and data collection efforts will not be impacted, nor would existing 

users’ water appropriation permits or uses.  Smaller and de minimis users will not 

be negatively affected by this change because their stockwatering is either existing 

or likely to be within the proposed limit on new uses. 

D. The extent to which the existing rule overlaps, duplicates, or 

conflicts with other state or federal rules and with local 

government regulations 

The Order’s continued allowance for exempt uses in areas designated as 

CGWAs conflicts with the Commission’s authorizing statute, which mandates that 

the Commission “progressively formulate” a water resources program that must, 

among other things, protect existing water rights and consider “harmful effects 

upon ground water supplies.”60 The continued allowance for new, exempt 

stockwatering uses when such exemptions have the potential to—and have in fact 

been proven to—vastly overexploit the area’s critically endangered groundwater 

resources stands in direct conflict to the state’s water policy and regulations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57  See supra note 30. 
58  2017 CENSUS, supra note 27. 
59  See AFO Spreadsheet, supra note 33. 
60  ORS 536.300(2); ORS 536.310(1), (6). 



 

 19 

E. Changed technology, economic Conditions, and other factors 

 

Technology, economic conditions, and other factors have radically 

transformed animal agriculture in the Ordnance CGWAs—and everywhere else— 

since the Director issued the Order in 1976. These changes have rendered the Order 

inadequate to protect the Ordnance CGWAs. 

 

Over the past half century, technology has transformed dairy farms in the 

Ordnance CGWAs into industrial behemoths. But there were no mega-dairies there 

in 1976 when the Director issued the Order—indeed, the technology used today to 

milk thousands of cows at once was not yet available.61 Accordingly, the first 

mega-dairy did not appear in the region until more than twenty years after the 

Order was issued62—and since then the number of cows and calves has nearly 

quadrupled.63  

 

The Order likely allowed continuation of exempt groundwater use for 

stockwatering because it did not anticipate the potential for intense, concentrated 

demand from new industrial-scale livestock operations. And nor could this demand 

have been anticipated; the Director simply had no way of knowing in 1976 how 

dangerous industrial-scale animal agriculture facilities would become to 

groundwater resources in the future. The technological developments that 

contributed to the rise of industrial animal agriculture—and the corresponding 

demise of smaller farms that had less concentrated and intense impacts64—require 

the Commission to amend the Order to make it effective. 

 

Finally, when the Order was issued, the Director alone could declare a 

CGWA and craft the determination order. There is now a more robust process in 

Oregon for determining a CGWA and the types of protections afforded. The 

multi-member Commission is vested with the authority—and the responsibility—to 

act in order to protect the public health, welfare, and safety. To fulfill its duty to 

Oregonians, the Commission should amend the Order to prohibit new exempt use of 

groundwater in excess 5,000 gallons per day for stockwatering.   

 

61  Milking machines did not become commercially available until the 1990s. How new 

technology is transforming dairy farming, MEGALAC (Feb. 8, 2018), 

https://www.megalac.com/about/news/151-how-new-technology-is-transforming-dairy-

farming. 
62  THREEMILE CANYON FARMS, About, https://www.threemilecanyonfarms.com 

/about (last visited Aug. 20, 2020). 
63  See supra notes 25 and 26. 
64  Terry, supra note 44 (“As in the rest of the country, Oregon dairy farms have faced 

consolidation in recent decades, with the number of operations shrinking as farms 

themselves have grown. In the early 1990s, Oregon had about 500 dairy farms. By 1998, 

there were 326, Kerr said. Today, they number about 206, according to Oregon Department 

of Agriculture statistics.”). 



 

 20 

F. Nature of Comments and Complaints 

 

Oregon agencies have also received myriad comments and complaints 

regarding the resource extraction of industrial animal agriculture facilities within 

the Ordnance CGWAs. For example, ODA received more than 4,000 comments on 

Lost Valley’s CAFO permit.65 Those comments reflect widespread public concern 

about Lost Valley’s effects on groundwater resources, public health, and 

environmental justice.66 Public interest groups and a neighboring dairy also 

contested a water-right transfer to allow a new well at Lost Valley that would have 

been primarily for stockwatering.67 Oregon’s public has thus made clear that the 

existing overexploitation of Oregon’s water resources, including by and through use 

of the stockwatering exemption for significant new and expanded uses, is a point of 

public controversy and concern. 

 

VII. CONCLUSION 

 

Simply put, the 1976 Order allowed new exempt stockwatering use in a time 

before large-scale, highly concentrated livestock operations populated the area. If 

current trends continue, new operations will continue to be drawn to the area in the 

future. Revising the Order to preclude new and expanded exempt use of more than 

5,000 gallons per day for stockwatering is now necessary to further the state’s water 

policy, conserve groundwater resources, and protect the public welfare, safety, and 

health. We respectfully request that the Commission amend the Order to do this.  

 

We look forward to your response within 90 days, as well as the opportunity 

to discuss this with you further in the event the petition is denied, as required by 

OAR 137-001-0070(3), (4)(c). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65  OR. DEP’T OF AGRIC. & OR. DEP’T OF ENVTL. QUALITY, CONFINED ANIMAL FEEDING 

OPERATION (CAFO) NPDES PROPOSED CAFO INDIVIDUAL PERMIT FOR LOST VALLEY FARM, 

GREG TE VELDE, RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS 1, 

https://www.oregon.gov/ODA/programs/ 

NaturalResources/Documents/CAFOPublicNotices/LostValleyFarm/LostValleyFarmComme

nts.pdf (last visited Aug. 20, 2020). 
66  Id.; see, e.g., Food & Water Watch, supra note 34, at 13. 
67  OR. WATER RES. DEP’T, OVERVIEW OF WATER RIGHTS ISSUES AT LOST VALLEY FARM 

BEFORE THE SENATE COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES 2-3, 

https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2017I1/Downloads/CommitteeMeetingDocument 

/148858 (last visited Aug. 19, 2020). 



21 

Sincerely, 

Cristina Stella 

Managing Attorney 

Animal Legal Defense Fund 

On behalf of: 

Brian Posewitz 

Staff Attorney 

WaterWatch of Oregon 

213 SW Ash St. # 208  

Portland, Oregon 97204 

Lauren Goldberg 

Legal & Program Director 

Columbia Riverkeeper 

407 Portway Ave. # 301 

Hood River, Oregon 97031 

Shari Sirkin 

Executive Director  

Friends of Family Famers 

P.O. Box 396 

Corbett, Oregon 97019 

Jennifer Hauge 

Board Member 

Humane Voters Oregon  

5331 SW Macadam Ave. # 258 

Portland, Oregon 97239 

Amy van Saun 

Senior Attorney 

Center for Food Safety 

2009 NE Alberta St. # 207 

Portland, Oregon 97211 

Erin Eberle 

Director of Engagement 

Farm Forward 

P.O. Box 4120 

Portland, Oregon 97208 

Tarah Heinzen 

Legal Director 
Food & Water Watch 

1616 P St. NW # 300 

Washington, DC 20036 

Hannah Connor 

Senior Attorney 

Center for Biological Diversity 

P.O. Box 2155 

St Petersburg, Florida 33731 

Dated: October 5, 2020



Attachment A 



BEFORE THE DIRECl'OR OF THE WATER RESOURCES DEPARI'MENT 

.lt>rrow and Unatilla Counties 

ON THE QUESTION OF 
DETE™INATION OF A 
CRITICAL GIDUND WATER 
AREA IN THE ORINANCE 
AREA, IDRRCW AND 
UMATILIA COUNTIES, 
OREGC:N 

INTIDDUCI'ION 

l 

FINDING3, rnNCLUSIONS, 

AND ORDER 

Notices of hearing on the question of the determination of a 

critical ground water area in the Ordnance area of Morrow and Um3.tilla 

Counties, Oregon were published in the Hermiston Herald and the East 

Oregonian, newspapers of general circulation, as defined by ORS 193.010 

and 193.020, for 2 successive and consecutive weeks in the January 1, 

1976 and the January 8, 1976 issues of the Hermiston Herald; and the 

January 6, 1976 and January 13, 1976 issues of the East Oregonian in 

Umatilla County, Oregon. Written notices were also nailed to all 

claimants or appropriators of ground water of record in the Ordnance 

ground water area and all water well contractors and drilling nachine 

operators whose addresses were within M:>rrow or Umatilla Counties, 

Oregon. Notices of hearing were also mailed to the following: 

(1) Senators: Senator Michael G. Thorne of Umatilla County 
Senator Kenneth A. Jernstedt of Morrow COunty 

(2) Representatives: Representative Wallace W. McCrae of 
Umatilla County 
Representative Jack Sumner of 1-brrow 
County 

(3) Federal Agencies: (a) Stanley Kapustka, Chief, Portland 
District, U. s. Geological Survey, 
Portland, Oregon 

(b) R:>bert Fery, Federal Land Bank, 
Spokane, Washington 

(c) Mr. Fields, Bonneville Pooer Adminis
tration, Walla Walla, Washington 

·10 



-2-

(d) Irvin Wi1liams, Maintenance Engineer, 
U. s. Army DepOt, Ordnance, Oregon 

(e) u. s. Army corps of Eiigineers, Walla Walla, 
Washington 

(f) u. s. Army Engineer District, Seattle, 
Washington 

(4) County Officials: (a) Darrell Maxwell, Extension Service, 
Henniston, Oregon 

(b) Umatilla County Planning Ccmni.ssion, 
Henniston, Oregon 

(c) Morrow County Planning Ccmni.ssion, 
Heppner, Oregon 

(d) Umatilla County Planning Ccmni.ssion, 
Pendleton, Oregon. 

(e) Jim R. Stephenson, East Central Oregon 
Association of Counties, Pendleton, 
Oregon 

(£) Port of Umatilla, Henniston, Oregon 
(g) Port of Morrow, Boardman, Oregon 
(h) Fbrrest K. Starrett, Chairrran, Umatilla 

County Camri..ssion, Pendleton, Oregon 
(i) Judge Paul W. Jones, Chairrran, Morrow 

County Ccmni.ssion, Heppner, Oregon. 

(5) Cities: (a) city of Hermiston, Mayor L. D. Grey 
(b) city of Henniston, Tan Harper, City Manager 
(c) City of Umatilla, Mayor A. L. Draper 
(d) city of Irrigon 

(6) Others: (a) Stanfield Irrigation District, Don Wilson, Stanfield, 
Oregon 

(b) The Eastern Oregonian, Hermiston, Oregon 
(c) The Tri-city Herald, Henniston, Oregon 
(d) Umatilla Electric Cooperative Association, Hermiston, 

Oregon 
(e) Kottkarrp and O'Rourke, Attorneys at law, Pendleton, 

Oregon 
(f) Peterson and Peterson, Attorneys at law, Pendleton, 

Oregon 
(g) ONen Panner, Attorney at I.;:M, Bend, Oregon 
(h) Donald Morrison, Attorney at Law, Hermiston, Oregon 
(i) Manager, Gaschler and Associates, Henniston, Oregon 
( j) Irrigation Engineering, Pasco, Washington 
(k) Oregon Drilling Association, Gladstone, Oregon 
(1) Oregon, Washington Railroad and Navigation Carpany, 

Portland, Oregon 
(m) Sabre Corporation, Boardrran, Oregon 
(n) Herman Winters, Morrow County District Attorney, 

Heppner, Oregon 

2 

The notice of hearing invited all interested persons to be present 

at the hearing to present oral or docurrentary evidence pertaining to the 

following subjects: 

(a) Whether ground water levels in the areas in question are 
declining or have declined excessively; 



-~-

(b) Whether the wells of two or nore ground water claimants or 
appropriators within the areas in questions interfere sub
stantially with one another; 

(c) Whether the available ground water supply in the areas in 
question is being or is about to be overdrawn; 

(d) Whether the purity of the ground water supply in the areas 
in question has been or reasonably may be expected to bemrre 
polluted to an extent contrary to the public welfare, heal th, 
and safety. 

3 

A public hearing in connection with the above entitled subjects was 

held before Chris L. Wheeler, Deputy Direct.or of the Water Resources 

Department on Wednesday, February 18, 1976 at 9:30 a.m. in Th::>npson 

Hall at the Umatilla County Fairgrounds in Henniston, Oregon in accordance 

with the Notice given. The Water Resources Departrrent' s studies and 

recomnendations as contained in Exhibit No. 1 were presented and pertinent 

testirrony and evidence pertaining to the detennination of a critical 

ground water area were received as provided in ORS 537.730, 537.735 

and 537.740. 

The following appeared as ·witnesses and testified at the hearing: 

(a) William B. McCall, Hydrogeologist, Water Resources Departrrent 
(b) Luther W. Cramer, Well o.-mer and operator 
(c) DNight Hulet, Well o,.mer and operator 
(d) Julius Szabo, Land~ 
(e) Troy Griffin, Water well contractor and driller 
(f) John Robison, Engineer 
(g) Willi .un Penney, Manager, Port of Umatilla 
(h) J. V. Aylett, Well owner and operator 
(i) Dennis Logan, Well a.mer anci operator 
(j) M3.lco1m Skinner, Well owner and operator 
(k) Chester A. Wilson, M3.yor of Irrigon 
(1) DNayne Carroll, Well owner and operator 
(m) LaVen1e Boylan, Businessman 
(n) Ervin C. Williams, Maintenanc-= engineer, u. s. Arrey Depot 

4 

It no.1 appearing that all evidence and testirrony has been taken in 

the above entitled IPatt:r, the Director of the Water Resources Dcpartm:mt, 

being fully advised in the premises, makes and orders to be entered in 

the records of his office the foll0t1ing Findings, Conclusions, and Order: 

42 



-4-

FINDINGS 

l 

The Ordnance ground water area, as used in these findings, lies 

within the Urratilla l<:Mlands bordering the Columbia River in north-central 

Oregon within the northeast corner of M::lrrON County and the northwest 

con1er of umatilla County. The Ordnance basalt ground water area includes 

all of Township 3 North, Range 26 East; all of TONnShip 3 North, Range 27 

East except that part draining directly into Butter creek; all of TONnship 

4 North, Range 26 East and Township 4 North, Range 27 East; and that part 

of Township 5 North, Range 26 East and Ta.vnship 5 North, Range 27 East 

lying south of the Columbia River. 

2 

The Ordnance gravel ground water area includes Sections 1, 2, 3, 10, 

11, 12, 13, 14, and 15 of ':'ovmship 3 North, Range 26 East; Sections 10, ll, 

12, 13, 14, 15, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 34, 35, and 36 of Township 4 North, 

.Range 26 East; the north one-half of TONnship 3 North, Range 27 East; all 

but Sections 1 through 6 of 'lbWnship 4 North, Range 27 East; Sections 6, 7, 

and 18 of Township 3 North, Range 28 East; and Sections 7, 18, 31, and 

those areas of Sections 8, 9, 16, 17, 19, 20, and 30 of Township 4 North, 

.Range 28 East, lying west of the umatilla River. The l:x>undary lines 

of t'1e proposed critical ground water area are shown on the topographic 

map on Plate 1 (attached) . 

A. Physiography 

3 

GEOLOGIC SETTING 

The Ordnance area occupies the north central portion of a broad, 

gently rolling, slightly dissected, lowland plain which rises along gentle 

slopes from the Colurrbia River to the rounded hills and small valleys of 

the Blue M::luntains to the south. The elevations within the report area 

rise from an altitude of about 250 feet near the Columbia River at Irrigon 

to al:x>ut 1,000 feet near the southern oorder of the report area along the 

43 



-s-

south base line of TOwnship 3 North. The majority of lands irrigated 

from welJ.s within the area lie bet\'1een elevations of 500 to 650 feet 

above mean sea level. The Ordnance re.salt ground water area encanpasses 

approximately 175 square miles; the ordnance gravel ground water area 

occupies approximately 82 square miles (see Plate 1, attached) • 

4 

B. Stratigraphy 

The broad plain of the ordnance ground water area is everywhere 

underlain by a thick sequence of basaltic lava flows kna-m as the 

Columbia River Group. At most places in the area, these rucks lie buried 

beneath sed.llrentary deposits of fanglorrerate and older alluvium. Above 

an elevation of about 750 feet, near the &Juthern toundary of the area, 

Plioce."le fanglomarate directly overlies the b:l.saltic lavas (see Plate 2, 

attached). These sedirrents are corrposed of a heterogeneous mixture of 

tightly cemented sand, silt, and clay with embedded basaltic rock debris 

derived as slope wash fran the weathering of basaltic rocks on upland 

slopes to the south. Belo.v the 750 foot elevation, the older alluvium 

(glaciofluviotile deposits), consists of lenticular, poorly sorted deposits 

of sand, gravel, silt, and clay laid dam by the ancestral Columbia River 

during various flood stages in Pleistocene tirre. S<xre of the clay and silt 

deposits at or near the base of the alluvial sediments are probably 

lacustrine in origin, laid dcMn in shallo.v lakes that were fonred during 

periods of do.vnstream damning of the river by ice and debris. 'l'he 

thickness of the stream and lake deposits in the area averages approxi

mately 50 to 100 feet and attains a maximum of about 200 feet. 

Basalt of the Columbia River Group underlies all of the Ordnance 

ground water area. However, except for a snall area along the Columbia 

River in Sections 15 and 16, To.vnship 5 North, Range 27 :cast, the 

basalt is co:rrpletely covered by alluvium. The Columbia River Group is 

a series of accordantly layered basaltic lavas. The basalt is kno.vn to 



-6-

exceed 2,500 feet in thickness in nearby areas, aJ.though only about 1,500 

feet has been penetrated by wells loca11.y. Individual. 1.ava flows in this 

fornation vary from about 10 to 150 feet in thickness and cxmm:::Jnly extend 

laterally for about 1 to 12 miles. Typically, the flows are a hard, dense, 

non-porous, olivine basalt near the base grading upNard to coarser grained, 

vesicular, and scoriaceous zones near the top. The flcms corrrronly display 

colurmar jointi."lg patterns consisting of polygonal or hexagonal shaped, 

roughly vertical, columns that developed along cooling joints. Rectangular 

or diced jointing is also cannon to sorre flows in the area. Allrost all 

of thL j?inting patterns within the basalts are relatively tight and are 

only rarely open and well developed. Vertical penreability, therefore, 

is believed to be quite low. 

6 

The basalts making up the COlumbia River Group issued forth as 

a very fluid lava from numerous fissures that opened up in the Columbia 

basin. Individual outpourings of lava spread out as streams and lakes of 

rrolten rock which eventually cooled to form broad lava plains. At tines, 

soil zones, stream channels, and lakes forned by impounded streams developed 

on the lava plains only to be buried by succ~ssive fla.;s of lava. Sedllrents 

deposited upon the lava surface include clay, silt, and sand and gravel 

which ncM occur as local interbeds, as much as 100 feet thick, between 

flows of basalt. Where penetrated by wells drilled into the basalt below 

the region'il water table, the coarser grabled sedllrents fonn extrerrely 

good water yielding zones. 

7 

C. Structure 

The topography of the Ordnance area is largely controlled by the 

tectonic structure of the underlying basaltic rock. The basalt dips al.rrost 

imperceptibly along gentle slopes fran the uplands of the Blue Mountain 

anticline, several miles to the southeast of the area, to the east-west 

trending, 160-mile-long, Dalles-Unatilla syncline at the north boundary 

45 



-7-

of the report area. The Columbia River lies in the axial trough and 

follows the axis of the syncline. The Ordnance ground water area 

occupies part of the gently dipp:ing south llinb of the syncline. 

Structural dips trend to the northwest within the basalts of the report 

area and average approximately 30 feet to the mile. 

8 

The Service anticline, s'ha.vn on Plate 2 (attached) , lies approximately 

3 miles to the east, and generally parallels the eastern boundary of the 

Ordnance ground water a::ea. The anticline is an up-turned structural 

fold in the basaltic rocks extending northward from Service Buttes to 

Sillusi Butte in Wash:ington across the COlumbia River frcm umatilla. It 

is believed that the structure serves as a barrier to· the noverrent of 

ground water from up-slope areas to the S0'1theast. 

9 

OCCURRENCE OF GROUND WATER 

A. Stream and Lake Sec:li.nents 

Ground water within the stream and lake deposits overlying the 

basalt of the COlumbia River Group has been extensively developed by 

shallow wells in the report area. The arrount of acreage irrigated by 

wells developing water from these alluvial aquifers is nore than 1ouble 

the acreage irrigated irarn deep basalt wells in the overall Ordnance 

ground water area. 

10 

1. Lost Lake-Depot Area 

Shallow '1ells producing fran the alluvium are concentrated nostly 

in the north half of Township 3 North, Range 27 East and in the south 

half of Township 4 North, Range 27 East, herein terned the rost Iake

Depot area. Here, the gravel interbeds in the alluvium are noderately 

thick and are in places highly pr.:filreable. The capacities of wells in 

this particular area range from 400 to 3,000 gallons per minute and 

average about l, 800 gallons per minute. The occurrence of penreable 

46 



-a-

gravel lenses in the alluvial sedi..rrents, lriwever, is irregular in both 

horizontal and vertical distribution. A number of wells with yields of 

less than 100 gallons per minute have been oonstructed in the area .• 

The alluvhnn in this highly developed area ranges in thickness from 

approximately 80 feet to 170 feet with an average thickness of about 

100 to 125 feet. The saturated portion of the alluvial sedirrents, .or 

that part lying below the water table, is about 25 feet thick throughout 

the developed area. Hc:Mever, because of structural or erosional 

features in the underlying basalt, the saturated alluvium ranges from a 

low of approximately 15 feet to a high of 125 feet in sorre areas (see 

Plate 4, attached). To the north, south, and to the west of the Lost 

Lake-Depot area, the saturated alluvium becorres progressively thinner and 

finer grained with a noteable horizontal discontinuance 0£ penreable 

lenses of gravel. In parts of Townships 3 and 4 North, Range 26 East, 

and in parts of Township 4 North, Ranges 27 and 28 East, the stream 

and lake sediments stand above the water table and are not a source 

of water. Along the Columbia River, in the northern part of the Ordnance 

ground water area, and especially in TCMnShip 5 North, Range 26 East, 

the ground water in the alluvial secllirents is partly in hydraulic 

oonnection with the river and is generally free to rise and fall with 

fluctuations of the pool leve} of Lake Umatilla behind John Day Dam. 

11 

2. Westland Road Area 

Another area of major developrrent of ground water in the stream 

and lake sediments is in Township 4 North, Range 28 East, west of the 

umatilla River, and along the east range line of the northeast quarter of 

Township 4 North, Range 27 East, and part of the west half of Township 3 

North, Range 28 F.ast, term=d the Westland Road area (see Plate 1). Here, 

the alluvium is approximately 100 to 150 feet thick and contains thick 

lenses of permeable gravel. In general, the lower one-half of the 

alluvium in this area is saturated with water. Large quantities of ground 

4-7 



-9-

water have been developed fran shallow wells in the area for agriculti:iral 

and for industrial purposes. The relative thick and highly :penteable 

lenses of open gravel that underlie the Westland Road area appru:ently 

lens out within short lateral distances and do not extend into the finer 

grained sed:ilrents lying between this developed area and the I.Dst Lake-Depot 

area. Wells constructed into alluvial deposits between the two highly 

productive areas have enoountered only fine-grained sedi.m:mts of clay, 

silt, and sand with relatively minor arrounts of gravel. The hydraulic 

conductivity between the two arenf·; is believed to be very low. 

12 

The ground water table within the stream and lake sed:irrents in 

the overall Ordnance gravel ground-water area slopes rather gently in 

a general northwesterly direction. The ground-water gradient averages 

about 50 feet per mile in areas where the sedirrents are poorly perrreable. 

In areas of greater pe:r:rreability, oontaining abundant gravel deposits, the 

gradient flattens to approximately 12 feet per mile (see Plate 3, attached). 

13 

B. Ordnance Basalt Aquifers 

The basalts of the Columbia River Group contain the :rrost wide-spread 

aquifers in the Ordnance ground water area. These aquifer units are 

often capable of yielding 1, 000 gallo!"..s per minute or rrore to rrost properly 

constructed wells. Ground-water aquifers in the basaltic rocks are in 

the form of thin tabular bodies, usually in the broken and rubbl y contact 

zones between individual flows of basalt. The contact zones are at 

places porous and perneable in a horizontal direction. The conpact center 

parts of nost flows are relatively inipemeable and under natural conditions 

do not pennit wc:!ter to :rrove freely between aquifers. Ground water in the 

horizontal porous zones, therefore, is confined. 

14 

In addition to the vertical separation, the tabular ground-water bodies 

generally are not continuous over great horizontal distances. Interruptions 



-io-

of the peoneability in the horizontal water-bearing zones by structural. 

faul.ts and fol.ds and by stratigraphic features, such as the l.ensing out 

of individual flows, has produced an areal corrrpartrcentation of the 

hydrologic system in the basalt rocks. As a result, the potentianetric 

head relationships arrong the various water bearing zones in the area 

are varied and complex with each zone having its own potentianetric head. 

For this reason, water level elevations in the basaltic aquifers cannot 

be realistically depicted in graphic nap fonn. 

15 

The overall porosity of the basalt fonnation is low. The percent 

of open space available for the storage of water in the fonnation is 

probably less than one percent, or only atout l/20th that of the overlying 

gravels. On the basis of the reported specific capacities (gallons per 

minute per foot of drawdo,.m), of the deep basalt wells in the area, the 

transmissivity of the basalt is estirrated to range from 10,000 feet2 to 

50,000 feet2 per day. Because of the relatively high transmissivities 

and low storage coefficients of the J:asalt in the area, the hydraulic 

effects fran the pumping of wells can extend over great distances within 

individual aquifers. 

A. Alluvial Sediments 

16 

RFCHARGE 

Recharge to the alluvial sediments is derived partly frc:m precipitation 

infiltrating directly into the sedlirents and percolating dCMnWard to the 

water table. Precipitation averages al::x:>ut 8.5 inches per year, and occurs 

mainly during the late fall, winter, and spring nonths. Pan evaporation 

rates as rreasured during past years in Henniston are high, averaging 

atout 45 inches per year. This is the equivalent of atout 31. 5 inches 

of field evaporation. These periods of high evaporation, however, occur 

in the hot dry surnrrer rronths and in the early fall when rreasurable 

precipitation is extrem:!ly rare. Evaporation duri..11g the winter nonths 

49 



-l.l.-

is assumed to be very low, probably less than 4 inches per year. It is 

estimated that less than one-fourth of the total annual precipitation is 

able to recharge the ground-water J::cdy within the alluvial sediments 

after soil noisture deficiencies have been replaced. Recharge to the 

alluvial aquifers may greatly exceed this amount during those years when 

extremely heavy periods of precipitation occur o:.:E".r relatively short 

periods of time. For example, dur:ing the nonths of November and December, 

1973, over 7 inches of precipitation fell over the area. Water level 

measuren>ents of shallow gravel wells obtained during February 1975 

shCMed that the water levels in sorre of the wells had not declined as in 

past years. In other shallow wells, a rise in water levels of 1 to 3 feet 

was measured. A fw of the wells in the area experienced slight water 

level declines during this sarre period which may be due to a variance in 

horizontal permeability or to heavy pumping just prior to water level 

measurements. 

17 

Irrigation water i.mp::>rted into the I.Dst Lake-Depot area by the 

High Line canal of the Westland Irrigation District is a source of noderate 

recharge to the alluvial aquifers in this area. Scm= recharge also 

undoubtedly occurs in years when there is surface runoff from the hills 

lying to the south. Moderate recharge to the alluvial sedilnents in the 

Westland Road area occurs as ditch leakage from surface water :imported 

into the area, and as percolating water from flood irrigation in a fr:M 

local areas. 

18 

Recharqe to the alluvial sedirrents within the I.Dst lake-Depot area 

from all s(iurces is estimated to be less than 6, 000 acre feet per year. 

19 

Graphs of u. S. Weather Bureau precipitation records for Henniston 

and cumulative departure curves (Figure 1, Page 13, Exhibit No. 1) show 

a rising trend in precipitation between the years of 1940 and 1964, a 

50 



-12-

falling trend fran l964 to 1969, and another rising trend that began in 

1969. Representative hydrographs of gravel wells in the area shON an 

increase in the rate of decline of water levels in the stream and lake 

deposits during this last rising trend. Therefore, excessive pumpage 

of ground water and not comternporary precipitation patterns is responsible 

for the decline of water levels. 

20 

B. Basalt Aguifers 

There appears to be Ver'f little recharge to the deep basalt zone 

in the area. Carbon-14 dating of the ground water in the deep basalt 

zone, in the shallow basalt zone, and in the shalla.v gravel aquifer by 

the United States Geological Survey (Robison, 1971) indicated an age of 

at least 27,000 years since water in the deep basalt zone last made oontact 

with the atrrosphere. Water fran the sha.llow basalt zone showed an age 

of 6, 700 years, while the water obtained from the shallow gravel aquifer 

had a very recent age (1950). These reported ages, along with known 

aquifer characteristics, indicate that the water in the aquifer units 

in the basalt is largely or entirely ancient water and that the aquifers 

do not receive substantial recharge from local precipitation or fran 

sources outside the area. In addition, the vertical separation and 

corrpartmentation of the aquifer units in the basalt, and the continual 

decline of water levels in wells producing from the basalt, further 

f;uggest that the water withdrawn by deep wells in the area is not being 

substantially replenished. Minor recharge to the basalt, h01tVever, does 

occur in the fonn of cascading water from the overlying gravel aquifer 

in a fr:M :ilnproperly cased wells. Uncased wells that penetrate rrore than 

one aquifer unity may also permit the rroverrent of water between aquifers 

to sane degree although this has not been derronstrated by actual current 

m::?ter tests oonducted by staff Irembers of the State Engineer's office 

in ~ of the deep wells. Hydrographs of wells in the area shON a 

seasonal fluctuation of water levels and indicate a lateral novenent 

5:l 



-1-3-

of water in the basalt. This lateral rrcvenent of water is in response 

to temporary pumping cones surrounding pumping wells and to reduced 

p::>tentiorretric pressures in confined aquifers caused by the withdrawal 

of water. The continued overdraft of ground water from the aquifer 

units in the basalt and the continual decline of water levels will not 

result in a significant increase in the rate of natural recharge to the 

ground water body. 

21 

WATER LEVEL DECLINE 

A. Alluvial Sediments 

Beginning in the early 1960's, water level data have been collected 

on a quarterly basis frcm four wells constructed into the alluvium, 

(Hydrographs of wells No. 1, 3, 16-B, and 33, Water Resources Departlrent 

Ground Water Report No. 23, Exhibit No. 1). In addition, the water levels 

in 2·1 shallow wells in the Lost Lake-Depot and the Westland Ibe>.d areas, 

and 16 wells in the shallow gravels near the COlumbia River have been 

rreasured yearly since 1971. The water level rreasurerrents in gravel 

wells in the Lost Lake-Depot and the Westland !bad areas shCM an average 

water level decline of slightly over 1. 6 feet per year. Shallcw wells 

in the lowland areas near the COlurnbia River generally have not 

experienced a decline in water levels. 

22 

The hydrographs of observation wells nurrbers 1, 3, and 16-B show 

a significant change in the rate of water level decline in the early 

months of 1972. The rate of decline prior to this tine was in the order 

of 0. 5 to l. 0 feet per year; therafter, the decline rate increased to. 

about 3.0 feet per annum in wells No. 1 and 3, and to approximately 

7. O feet per annum in well No. 16-B. Well No. 33 shovved a decrease 

in the rate of decline during this same period, probabl"..' because of 

decreased use of the well. (Hydrographs of the above listed wells are 

shown in Ground Water Rep::>rt No. 23, Exhibit No. 1). 

52 



-1.4-

23 

A serious water level problem has developed in the wells producing 

water fran the alluvial sedirrents in the IDst Lake-Depot and the 

Westland Road areas. The a:mtinual decline of water levels over a 

long period of t:ine has considerably reduced the arrount of water in 

storage in the alluvial aquifers. Water levels in the alluvial aquifer 

underlying the IDst lake-Depot area have declined in the order of 12 to 

29 feet during the past 10 years. The majority of these wells have less 

than 25 feet of saturated alluvium remaining. The seriousness of the 

matter is further corrq;x:iunded by the fact that lenses of penneable gravel 

are haphazardly dist.:t::ibuted throughout the area. Som: wells have gravel 

lenses only in the upper vertical section of the saturated sedirrents, 

and have considerably less than 25 feet of penneable aquifer remaining 

(Well reports of ~~ells number 5, 15, 33, 33-A, 42-C, 42-D, GrOund Water 

Report No. 23, Exhibit No. 1). 

24 

It is evident that the decline of water levels in the alluvial 

sediments is the result of a ground water overdraft by sha.lla,., wells 

in the area. continued excessive withdrawal of ground water will result 

in the ultimate failure of scree wells developing water from the alluvial 

aquifer. In order to prevent further depletion of the ground water 

reservoir, it will be necessary to substantially reduce the anount of 

ground water withdrawals by shallcw gravel wells or to replenish the 

aquifer by inporting water into the area from the Umatilla River or the 

Colurrbia River for direct recharge. 

25 

Water level rreasuremmts of representative wells in the Westland 

Road area during the past 3 to 4 years have shewn an average rate of 

water level decline of 1. 6 feet per year, similar to the declines 

observed in shallow wells in T°"1nship 4 North, Range 27 East. These 

wells hONever, have approxinately 50 feet of saturated alluvium remaining 

53 



-l-5-

and have a much longer life expectancy then nost of the wells to the 

southwest. 

26 

B. Basalt Aquifers 

A serious water level decline has occurred in most of the deep 

wells in the ordnance area during the past several years. This decline 

has been in the order of 5 to 7 feet per year. (See hydrographs of wells 

No.'s 72, 75, 78, 80, 81, 83, 87, 91, and 92, Exhibit No. 1.) The 

decline of water levels in shallow basalt wells, or those wells less 

than 400 feet deep, has been much less. These wells have shown a rate 

of water level decline of about 1. 6 to 2. O feet per year, similar to 

the decline of water levels in the shallow wells producing from the 

overlying alluvial sediments. The difference in the rates of water level 

decline between the shallow wells developing water from the upper zones 

in the basalt and the deep basalt wells indicates low penneability between 

zones. Some recharge to the upper basalt zones probably occurs by the 

slow downward leakage of water into weathered and fractured zones of the 

basalt from the overlying alluvial sediments. 

27 

Continued withdrawal of water fran deep wells in the area in 

a:rrounts presently being withdrawn will result in the continual decline 

of water levels at approxiroately the ~ or perhaps increased rates 

in future years. At present, the pumping levels in the deep production 

wells are relatively la.-1 and range fran approximately 175 feet in Well 

No. 78 to about 275 feet belON land surface in Well No. 80. Most of the 

deep wells in the area have ~,umping lifts of approxiroately 220 to 240 

feet. 

28 

GIDUND WATER DEVEIDPMENT 

A. Stream and Lake Sedi.nents 

Water Resources Department records show that the first irrigation well 

drilled in the Ordnance area to develop ground water from the stream and 



-17-

31 

GOOUND WATER USE 

A. Alluvial llquifers 

1.. I.est Lake-Depot Area 

There are approximately thirty-nine wells in the I.est Lake-Depot 

area developing ground water from the shallow gravel aquifer. The 

State Engineer records show that fourteen water right certificates have 

been issued covering 1070.4 acres of irrigated land. Seventeen permits 

have been issued for the irrigation of 3849.0 acres and eight applications 

for the appropriation of ground water to irrigate an additional 2073.5 

acres have been received. Permits for the appropriation of ground water 

in the area have not been issued since December 6, 1971. For the past 

three to four years prospective applicants have been advised of the pending 

investigation and advised that additional pennits for the appropriation 

of ground water for the area may rot be approved by the State Engineer. 

32 

2. Westland Road Area 

Approximately sixteen drilled wells and three dug wells or sunps 

develop water for irrigation or industrial purposes fran the shallON 

gravel aquifer in the Westland Road area. Eight water right certificates 

covering .'"".he irrigation of 750.l acres in the area have been issued and 

eight pennits for the irrigation of 794.9 acres have been approved. In 

addition, two permits for the conbined appropriation of 6.6 cubic feet 

per second for industrial use have been issued. At present, ten 

applications have been received for the irrigation of 378.2 acres in the 

area. 

33 

B. Basalt Aquifers 

Thirty ground water certificates have been issued for industrial, 

irrigation, and municipal use in the Ordnance basalt ground water area 

for the appropriation of ground water fran wells tapping the upper and 

56 



-1.6-

lake sedi.m:mts was constructed in 1950. The developrrent of ground water 

in the alluvial sedim:mts progressed rapidly until 1973 with the 

construction of approximately sixty drilled shallow irrigation and 

industrial wells and three dug wells or sl..l!Tps. Of the drilled wells, 

approximately forty-seven are presently in use or are available for use. 

29 

B. Basalt 

The developrrent of ground water in the Ordnance basalt area began 

in 1941 with the construction of three wells taPPing the upper basalt 

ground water aquifers when the Unatilla Anny Depot was built at 

Ordnance. The first deep basalt well was constructed during the 

following year by the Unatilla Housing Autority to supply water for the 

conmunity of Ordnance. In 1945, a well penetrating the shallow basalt 

reservoir was constructed by the Oregon-Washington Railroad for general 

railroad use. Two additional wells were drilled into the deep basalt at 

the Anny Depot in 1950 for fire protection, which were followed by 

another in 1954. The first deep well for irrigation use (Well No. 75, 

Exhibit No. 1) was constructed in 1956. In the late 1950's and ear:ly 

1960's, the area developed rapidly with the a:nstruction of seven de(,p 

irrigation wells and one deep fire protection well. In 1966 the State 

Engineer, after a hearing in the potential critical area, closed the area 

to further well developnent. 

30 

At the present t.irre thP~~ are eight wells developing ground water 

fran the deep basalt reserve. _ 4..,r agricultural purposes in the area. 

Three deep basalt wells and three wells tapping the upper basalt 

aquifers have water right cb.C'tificates for fire protection use at the 

Umatilla Anny Depot. In addition, one deep well and one shallcw basalt 

well in the depot compound are used to supPly water for general dorrestic 

purposes. A tot:;,l of twelve wells of record have been constructed in 

the deep basalt aquifers at Ordnance. 

55 



-J..8-

the deep basalt flows; four water right pennits have been issued. 

Subsequent to the State Engineer's Ordnance Critical Gronnd Water Area 

hearing in Henniston on JWJe 3, 1966, the State Engineer has not accepted 

any neN applications for tl ;,~ appropriation of ground water from the deep 

basalt aquifers in the area. Since the date of the hearing, n.ine appli-

cations for the appropriation of ground water frc:ro the upper basalt flo,.vs 

have been received and six pennits have been issued. Pennits for the use 

of shallON basalt wells in the area ha•Je not bee)1. issued since April 26, 

1971. The total number of acres under pennits and certificates of water 

right for the appropriation of water for irrigation purposes from the 

deep basalt aquifers in the area is 2336.7 acres. Irrigated acreage under 

pennits and certificates of water right fran wells tapping the shalla.11 

basalt aquifers totals 915.5 acres. In addition, the City of Irrigon 

shallow basalt well has a pennit for diversion of 1.0 cubic foot per second 

for municipal use and well No. 83 has u certificate of water right for the 

use cf 2.0 cubic feet per secnnd for stock raising purposes. 

34 

The Umatilla Army Depot holds certificates of wat.PJ rights for wells 

authorizing the diversion of 6.19 cubic feet per second frar: the deep 

basalt aquifers for fire protection and 0.5 cubic foot per second for 

donestic use. The wells in the compound deriving water fran the upper 

basalt units have water rights for the appropriation of 2.02 cubic feet 

per second for fire protection, 0.78 cubic feet per second fc:- danestic 

use, and 0.34 cubic feet per second for irrigation use. The use for 

fire protection .in the Depot area is J:i.mited to maintaining the fire 

suppression systems and to periods of actual fire emergency. 

35 

The capital investroc_~t in irrigation facilities for each ranch 

varies substantially with the ~lpe and ti.me of installation. In all 

cases the systems are quite extensive and cost many thousands of 

dollars for just those facilities (wells, purrps, rreters, pipelines, and 



sprinklers) directly related to applying water to the lands. Some 

estima.tes of losses are set forth by Hadley Akin's as Representative 

for the u. s. National Bank in Exhibit No. 5. For purposes of this order 

the detailed dollar a:rrounts are not material but it does show relative 

figures and the relationship to the econany of the carrmunity. The 

econa:nic loss to any rancher w:to must cease use of his irrigation system 

will be very substantial. In addition, substantial econa:nic loss can 

accrue to the carrmunity fran the secondary business effects in equiprrent 

fertilizers, etc, as well as additional employman.t. 

36 

The plarming carm:issions of Morrow County and Umatilla County have 

developed comprehensive plans for developnent of the areas included 

within the Ordnance ground water area. Each county does have the legal 

mechanism to control the overdeveloprrent of the area for residential 

use with the possible resulting overdevelopnent of the available ground 

water supply. 

37 

Evidence and testirrony made a part of the record indicates that 

the irrigation season in the Ordnance ground water areas generally 

extends fran early March until mid October of each year. 

CONCLUSIONS 

1 

Water levels in wells developing water fran the alluvial sedirrents 

overlying the basalts in the Ordnance gravel ground water area have 

declined at an average rate of approxima.tely 1. 6 feet per year. The 

decline of water levels in shallow gravel -wells in the area has developed 

into a serious decline problem. The long term decline of water levels 

clearly indicates that artificial discharge fran the alluvial aquifer 

system by withdrawals of ground water by -wells is greatly exceeding 

natural recharge to the aquifer. 

58 



2 

As the result of the decline of water levels within the alluvial 

sediments, only about 25 feet of the alluvium rema.ins in a saturated 

condition for use by the ma.jority of wells in the Lost Lake-Depot area 

(Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of Township 3 North, Range 27 East, W.M.·, 

and Sections 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 

and 35 of Township 4 North, Range 27 East, W .M.) . Sane wells in the area 

have less than 15 feet of saturated alluvium rercaining. 

3 

Without sare curtailment of withdrawals of ground water from the 

alluvial sediments in the Lost Lake-Depot area to effectuate a balance 

of withdrawals of water with recharge to the alluvial aquifer system 

water levels in the gravel wells will cx::mtinue to decline with the 

ultimate failure of many of the wells in the area in the very near 

future. 

4 

The water levels in the shallCM gravel wells in the Westland 

Ibad area (Sections 12, 13, 24, 25, and 36 of Township 4 North, Range 

27 East, W.M.: and Sections 7, 18, 19, and 31 of TCM.nship 4 North, 

Range 28 East, W.M.; and those parts of Sections 8, 9, 16, 17, 20, and 

30 of Township 4 North, Range 28 East, W.M., lying west of the Uma.tilla 

River) have displayed average rates of water level decline similar to 

those in the shallCM gravel wells in the Lost Lake-Depot area. The 

rercaining saturated alluvium underlying the Westland Road area, however, 

is approximately 50 feet thick. Wells in the area are not subject to 

failure or substantial reduction in yield at this t:i.ne. It ma.y becorre 

necessary to .inµ>se restrictions on withdrawals of water based on 

relative priorities fran these wells at sare future da.te. 

5 

The withdrawals of water fran the shallOW' gravel wells in the 

Westland Road area in quantities presently being- used have not shown 

59 



a significant hydraulic influence up:m shallOIN' wells in the Lost lake-

Depot area. It further appears that continued use at the present rate 

will not significantly change this influence. The slope of the water 

table and the lensing out of permeable units in the alluvial sediments 

between the Lost lake-Depot and the Westland Road area indicates that 

the hydraulic conductivity between the tvvo areas is ver:y lOIN'. HOIN'ever, 

additional developoont of ground water in the Westland Road area by 

additional wells with resulting increased purcpage fran the aquifer 

system could ultima.tely prcx:luce a change in the hydraulic gradient 

and result in increased depletion in the quantity of ground water in 

the Lost Lake-Depot area. 

6 

Wells producing from the shallow gravel aquifer near the Colurrbia 

River in ToWnship 5 North, Ranges 26 and 27 F.ast, W. M., have not shOIN'n 

appreciable water level declines. The withdrawals of water fran these 

wells have no hydraulic effect upon the shallOW' gravel wells in the 

Lost Lake-Depot and the Westland Road areas. 

7 

To properly provide for the public welfare, safety, and health, 

the rights to appropriate ground water and priority therefran must 

be ackncwledged and protected and reasonably stable ground water levels 

must be detennined and maintained. To accanplish this, further develcpnent 

of the alluvial aquifer system must be prohibited within the Ordnance 

gravel ground water area by additional wells except for those which are 

exempt fran filing for water rights in accordance with ORS 537.545: 

" * * * for stock.watering purposes, for watering any lawn 
or nonccmrercial garden not exceeding one-half acre in area, 
for single or group danestic purposes in an arrount not 
exceeding 15,000 gallons a day or for any single industrial 
or ccmrercial purpose in an arrount not exceeding 5,000 
gallons a day. * * * * 11 

To prevent the ultima.te and alnost inmediate failure of many of the wells 

prcx:lucing from the alluvial aquifer system within the Lost lake-Depot 

60 



-22-

area, it will. be necessary to substantial.l.y reduce the aitount of ground 

water withdrawals by shallow gravel wells in the area to balance overall. 

pumping withdrawals with recharge. 

8 

Toward this end it will also be necessary to reject the following 

pending applications for pennits to appropriate ground water from shallow 

gravel wells within the Ordnance Gravel critical Ground Water Area: 

G-5761, G-5932, G-5936, G-6023, G-6040, G-6058, G-6196, and G-6225. 

9 

Application G-5598 in the name of Hansell Brothers, Inc., for 

pennit to appropriate ground water for the supplemental irrigation of 

1724.2 acres pror:oses manifolding five wells together by a camon 

pipeline for suppletrental irrigation of various acreages with no increase 

in withdrawals of ground water. This could best be achieved by an appli

cation for change in r:oints of diversion. The present application should 

not be approved but the applicant should be pennittecl. to amend his appli

cation to cover the proposed change in r:oints of diversion and place 

of use that may be desirable in view of other provisions of this order. 

In view of these changes he should be pennitted six rconths in which to 

make such amendments. Siroilarily, application G-5449 in the nam: of 

Georgia Belle Holzapfel for pennit to appropriate ground water for the 

supplemental irrigation of 160.0 acres proposes manifolding four wells 

together by a c:::ormon pipeline for supplerrental irrigation of various 

acreages with no increase in withdrawals of ground water. This application 

should be treated in a like nanner with six nonths in which to arrend said 

application to cover the necessary changes in r:oints of diversion and 

place of use. 

10 

Application G-5947 is for the appropriation of 0.4 cubic feet 

per minute from a shallow dug well near the UTiatilla River in the 

61 



-23-

~ SW-., of Section 20, Township 4 North, Range 28 East, W.M., for the 

irrigation of 31. 7 acres. Ground water in this particular location is 

in hydraulic oormection with surface water within the river. The use 

of this well will not hann existing ground water rights. The application 

should be approved providing the application is CC&lpleted in the :fotm 

and contents as set forth in ORS 537.615 within a reasonable length 

of time as provided by ORS 537.620. 

11 

Application G-5026, Marvin and Frances McDole; G-5209, Hansell 

Bros., Inc.; G-5362, Thurman Martin; G-5397, LeRue Pollock; G-5449, 

Georgia Belle Holzapfel; G-5567, Fred Haskins, Jr.; and G-5684, Elroy 

F. McDole, for the proposed irrigation of additional acreages were 

filed in the office of the State Engineer and held without approval 

for a variety of reasons. Subsequently a number of applications were 

approved. These applications that were held and the ones with later 

priorities that were approved were filed at the ti.Ire decisions were being 

made on withholding further approvals. Since these pending applications 

have earlier dates of filing than those that were approved, the applicants 

should be given the opportunity to withdraw the apPlication or have 

them approved by the issuance of a permit even though other provisions 

of the final critical ground wate.:c order may require them to be shut 

off. In view of the other provisions, these applicants should be 

afforded 60 days in which to detennine which course of action should 

be followed. 

12 

Application G-6069, Lamb-Weston, Inc., for the appropriation of 

ground water from the shallow alluvial aquifer system for industrial 

purposes should be considered for approval for eirergency stand-by 

purposes only. If it is desired to operate it on a continuous basis, 

then an application for a change in point of diversion from well No. 

1 or 2 should be submitted. 

62 



13 

Recharge to the alluvial aquifer system within the lost Iake-1:."Epot 

area from all sources is estimated to average approximately 6,000 acre 

feet of water per year. To effectuate a balance of discharge to 

recharge within the system it would theoretically be necessary to 

limit pumping withdrawals to this sane anount. Until estimates of 

recharge are further refined, pumping withdrawals from wells producing 

ground water from the alluvial sediments in the area should be limited 

to an actual diversion not to exceed 9, 000 acre feet per year. Water 

levels and ptmtping records should be evaluated at the end of each year 

of imposed restriction to deter.mine the effectiveness of the limitation 

of water use and to detennine if additional reductions should be made. 

It is estimated that in an average year a total diversion of 9,000 acre 

feet would cover all rights up to Item No. 24 and would partially cover 

Item No. 25 as listed on Table No. 1. 

14 

It was requested during the hearing that restrictions of pumpage 

withdrawals from wells in the Ordnance gravel ground water area not 

be imposed until after an investigation and evaluation of the effect of 

possible recharge to the alluvial aquifers by continued sprinkler 

irrigation of acreages by existing irrigation systems presently 

importing surface water by pipeline from the Columbia River. Records 

of the Water Resources l:."Epartraent show that such irrigation is principally 

within Townships 3 and 4 North, Range 26 East, W. M. , and partly within 

the NW'!:! of TCMnship 3 North, Range 27 East, W. M. Altitu:ies of water 

levels as shown on Plat,e 3 (attached) indicate that continued irrigation 

by imported surf ace water in nost of the areas presently being irrigated 

will not directly recharge the shallow aquifer system and will not 

appreciably affect the ground water within the lost Iake-1:."Epot and 

Westland Road areas. The application of surface water imported into 

an area witin the NW'!:! of Township 3 North, Range 27 East, W.M. for 

63 



irrigation purposes i:;x>uld. :i;:cssibly contribute small quantities of water 

to recharge the alluvial aquifer in the IDst Lake-Depot area p:rovided 

that flood irrigation rrethods were used. Sprinkler irrigation, however, 

as presently used is not expected to contriliute appreciable quantities 

of recharge waters to the aquifer system. 

15 

B. Basalt Aquifers: Ordnance Basalt Ground Water Area 

Water levels in wells developing water fran deep ba.salt zones 

within the Ordnance basalt ground 'Water area have shown an annual 

declme of 5 to 7 feet per annum over the past several years. Pumping 

lifts in these wells are relatively high. These conditions do not 

justify a reduction in diversion rights fran t.l-ie deep b=t=z,lt wells in 

the area at this tiroe. There is no evidence to indicate the present 

water level declines in deep basalt wells have substantially harrred 

existing rights or have unduely affected purrping yields of wells in 

the area. Some curtailment of withdrawals of water, may becare 

necessary in the future. 

16 

To properly provide for the public welfare, safety, and health, the 

rights to appropriate ground water fran the deep and shall™ ground water 

zones within the basalt fonnation within the Ordnance basalt ground water 

area as delineated in Plate 1 must be acknowledged and protected and 

reasonably stable ground water levels must be determined and maintained. 

To accomplish this further developoont of the shallow or deep aquifer 

system must be prohibited within the basalts of the delineated area by 

additional wells which are not exempt fran filing for water rights in 

accordance with ORS 537.545. 

17 

Application G-5437 in the narre of Avery Taylor rovers a developm:mt 

made in 1971 of a well 173 feet deep into the upper basalt zone in the 

64 



northern part of the area. The arrount of water used has not substantially 

effe.cted any other water users. Continued use of this well at its present 

rate will not significantly effect other rights and should therefore be 

approved. 

18 

Application G-5565 for the appropriation of ground water fran the 

upper basalt aquifer system in the NWl4 ~ of Section 26, Tcwnship 5 

North, Range 26 East, W.M., was withdrawn in 1974 because of insufficient 

water. The well has been capped for p::>ssible future use for stock water 

or darestic purposes. 

19 

During the hearing many witnesses observed that the recarmendations 

prop::>sed in Ground Water Report No. 23 to restrict the construction of 

additional wells to lot sizes of 10 acres or rrore in area within the aforesaid 

ground water area for stock watering purposes and for single family dorrestic 

purposes only were too severe and ~uld produce an unnecessary economic 

hardship for many individuals in the area. The Uma.tilla and M:lrrow County 

governments have the legal authority to properly plan and zone the Ordnance 

ground water area to control land use developn9!1t including the recom

mendations that wells for individual datestic use should nonrally be 

restricted to haresites of 10 acres or rrore. 

20 

Economic losses or additional costs will accrue to the corrmunity and 

certain individuals in the area as a result of the overdeveloprrent. This 

will be true whether use of water under junior rights is curtailed for 

protection of prior rights, an alternate system .imp::>rting water fran 

outside sources is constructed, or the ground water su:i;:ply is exhausted. 

The last alternative, which ~uld result from failure to take any corrective 

action is probably the m::>st costly since it ~uld detrimentally affect all 

users and ultimately stop virtually all irrigation use. Pertinent parts 

of the law relating to policy reads as follows: 

65 



-27-

ORS 537 .525 (2) "Right~; to appropriate ground water and 

priority thereof to be. acknONledged and protected, except 

when, under certain conditions, the public welfare, safety and 

healtli. require otherwise. 

11 (3) Beneficial use without waste, within the capacity 

of available sources, be the basis, measure and extent of 

the right to appropriate ground water. 

11 (7) Reasonably stable ground water levels be detemri.ned 

and maintained. 

11 (8) Depletion of qround water supplies below econanic 

levels, irrpai:arent of natural quality of ground water by 

pollution and wasteful practices in connection with ground 

water be prevented or controlled within practicable limits". 

The order declaring a critical ground water area is provided for in 

ORS 537. 735. Corrective control provisions which may be included 

are set forth in subsection 3: 

ORS 537.735 (3) "The order of the State Engineer may 

include any one or rrore c~ the follCMing corrective 

control provisions: 

(a) A provision closing the critical ground water 
area to any further appropriatio:'l of ground water, in which 
event the State Engineer shall thereafter refuse to accept 
any application for a pennit to appropriate ground water 
located within such critical area. 

(b) A provision detennining the penlri.~sible total 
withdrawal of ground water in the critical area each day, 
no.nth or year, and, in so far as may be reasonably done, 
the State Engineer shall apportion such pennissible total 
withdrawal among the appropriators holding valid rights to 
the ground water in the critical area in accordance with 
the relative dates of priority of such rights. 

(c) A provision according preference, without reference 
to relative priorities, to withdrawals of ground water in the 
critical ar.::a for darestic and livestock purposes first, and 
thereafter other beneficial purposes, including agricultural, 
industrial, municipal other than darestic and recreational 
purposes, in such order as the State Engineer deems advisable 
under the circumstances. 

(d) A provision reducing the pennissibie withdrawal of 
ground water by any one or IX>re appropriators or wells in the 
...;ritical area. 

66 



-28-

(e) Where two or nore wells in the critical. area are 
used by the same appropriator, a provision adjusting the 
total. permissible with:lrawal. of ground water by such 
appropriator, or a provision forbidding the use of one or 
IIDre of such wells ccrcpletely. 

(f) A provision requiring the abaterre.nt, in whole or 
in part, or the sealing of any well in the critical area 
responsible for the admission of p::>lluting materials into 
the ground water supply or resp::>nsible for the progressive 
.inipainrent of the quality of the ground water supply by 
dispersing polluting materials .that have entered the ground 
water supply previously. 

(g) A provision requiring and specifying a system of 
rotation of ti<;:"! of ground water in the critical area. 

(h) !'ny one or rrore provisions making such additional 
requirerrents as are necessary to protect the public welfare, 
health and safety in accordance with the intent, purp::>ses 
and requirerrents of ORS 537.505 to 537.795. 

It is very clear from a reading of the entire Ground Water Act 

that the legislature intended that the State of Oregon's system of 

appropriation in accordance with relative dates of priority, which 

has been firmly established for surface water, be the guiding principle 

to be follCMed in administering the Grcund Water Law. However, it 

appears that the overall pubiic benefit V10uld justify some loss to 

prior rights in order to phase in the curtailrrents of use. In virtually 

all instances crops have been planted and fertilizers applied for the 

current year. To prevent any use during this (1976) season \'Puld 

cause unreasonable hardships. Provisions curtailing use of water to 

less than that authorized by respective water rights should not be made 

effective until after the 1976 irrigation season. 

21 

Accurate purrpage data on total ground water withdrawals from the 

alluvial aquifer system and timely water level data, from all ron-exernpt 

wells within the overall Ordnance gravel ground water area and the overall 

Ordnance basalt ground water area as delineated on Plate 1 (attached) , are 

necessary to finalize quantitative determinations of the storr.ge capacity 

of these g:~ound water bodies. All wells authorized to continue use 

under their gi:ound water rights within each of the aforesaid ground water 

areas should be equipped with totalizing water rreters of a type approved 

by the Wa'c:er Resources Department and should be provided with adequate, 

67 



-29-

measuring ports or systems so that ac=c..te .water. l.evel. rreasurercents 

can be ri:ade at atly ti.roe. 

22 

All meters, measuring systems, and control valves installed for use 

should be subject to inspection and approval by the Water Resources 

Department. Such approval should be not only a reqt:irernent of the initial 

installation but should also be required when such rreters, rreasuring 

systems, and control valves are replaced or repaired. 

23 

The withdrawals of ground water f:rcm all wells authorized to continue 

use under their ground water rights in the overall Ordnance gravel ground 

water area and the overall (;rdnance basalt gro•,md water area should be 

monitnred and regulated closely by the Water Resources Departrrent 

throughout each pumping season. 

24 

An irrigation season beginning March 10th and ending October_l5th of 

each Calendar year should be established since water can be ap£?lied to 

beneficial use for irrigation during this period. The withdrawal of 

ground water for irrigation purposes prior to the beginning and after 

the closing date of this season should be prohibited. 

ORDER 

1 

NCM THEREEDRE, IT IS ORDERED that the Ordnance shallCM alluvial 

aquifer is herewith declared a critical ground water area and is to be 

kn<:Mn as "The Ordnance Gravel Critical Ground Water Area". The area 

of the critical ground water area, which is sh<:Mn on Plate 1, is declared 

as follows: 

All of Sections 1, 2, 3, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15 of 
Township 3 North, Range 26 East; Sections 10, 11, 12, 13, 
14, 15, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 34, 35, and 36 of TCMnShip 
4 North, Range 26 East; the north one-half of Ta-mship 3 
North, Range 27 East; all but. Sections 1 through 6 of 
Township 4 North, Range 27 East; Sections 6, 7, and 18 of 
Township 3 North, Range 28 East; and Sections 7, 18, 31, and 

68 



those areas of Sections 8, 9, 16, 17, 19, 20, and 30 of 
Township 4 North, Range 28 East, lying to the west of the 
Unatilla River. 

It shall include all water contained in the ground water reservoir 

of the alluvial sediments overlying the re.salt fonnation in the area 

and regulation shall be imp:>sed on all users therefram. 

2 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that the Ordnance Gravel Critical Ground 

Water Area is closed to further appropriation of ground water. 

Applications for permits to appropriate ground water fran the shallow 

alluvial aquifer system within the boundaries of the critical ground 

water area will not be accepted. 

3 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that the appropriation of ground water 

fram the alluvial aquifer system within the Lost I.a.ke-Depot sub-area 

of the Ordnance Gravel Critical Ground Water Area, is hereby restricted 

to an average annual appropriation of 9, 000 acre feet per year. The 

distribution of water fram wells in the sub-area is to be msed on the 

relative date of priority of the water rights of the appropriators. 

The aforesaid withdrawal l:im:i.tation within the sub-area shall beo:::>rre 

effective at the end of the 1976 irrigation season but in any event 

not later than October 15, 1976. 

4 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that pending applications numbers G-5026 

in the name of Marvin and Frances Mc:D::>le; G-5209, Hansell Bros. Inc.; 

G-5362, Thurman Martin; G-5397, I.eRue Pollock; G-5567, Fred Haskins, Jr.; 

G-5684, Elroy F. Mc:D::>le be given the opportunity to withdraw the 

aforesaid applications or request within 60 days of the date of this order 

that they be approved even though other provisions of this order may 

subsequently require them to be shut 

5 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that pending applications G-5449 in the name 

of Georgia Belle Holzapfel and G-5598 in the name of Hansell Bros., Inc. 

69 



-3.l..-

wi11 be heJ.d for six m::inths during which the applicants may file arrendnents 

to request changes in points of diversion and/or changes in places of use. 

If the applications are not so am:mded, they will be rejected. 

6 

It is FTJI'HER ORDERED that applications G-5761 in the nane of 

John L. King; G-5932, Lyle and Jane K. Smith; G-5936, Bert H. Quick; 

G-6023, LeRue w. Pollock; G-6040, George H. Barton; G-6058, Edgar 

s. and Ebro c. Bloom; G-6196, Mrs. John W. Rice; and G-6225, WoodrON 

Walker are rejected effective October 15, 1976. 

7 

It is FTJRI'HER ORDERED that pending application G-6069 in the 

name of Lamb-Weston, Inc. be approved with a priority as of the date of 

filiny for use for industrial purpmes for stand-cy emergency use only 

providing the apflication is ccmpleted in the form and contents as set 

forth in ORS 537.615 within a reasonable length of tirre as provided 

by ORS 537.620. 

8 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that pending application G-5947 in i±e nane 

of Benjamin Newman shall be approved with a priority as of the date 

of filing providing the application is corrpleted in the fo:rm and contents 

as set forth in ORS 537.615 within a reasonable length of tine as 

provided by ORS 537.620. 

9 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that the Ordnance basalt aquifer is herewith 

declared a critical grc1...md water area and is to be knCMn as "The Ordnance 

Basalt Critical Ground Water Area". The roundary of the critical ground 

water area, which is shown on Plate 1, is described as follows: 

Beginning at the to.vnship line camon to TONnship 5 
North, Range 27 East, W .M., and Township 5 North, Range 28 
East, W.M., and it::> intersection with the south bank of the 
Columbia River thence south along said comnon tavnship line 
and south along the tavnship line CX)mton to TONnship 4 
North, Range 27 &l.st, W .M. , and TONnship 4 North, Range 28 
East, W .M., to the intersection with the northeast CX)mer 

70 



of section J., Township 3 North, Range 27 East, W.:t-'l~, and the 
northwest corner of Section 6, Township 3 North, Range 28 
East, W.M., thence south along the Section line ca:mon to 
said sections to the intersection with the southeast corner of 
said Section 1 and the southwest corner of said Section 6, 
thence southwesterly to the southenst corner of Section 34, 
Township 3 North, Range 27 East W .M. , thence west along the 
township line comron to Townships 2 and 3 NOrth, Ranges 26 
and 27 East, W.M., to a corner in camon with Section 1, 
Township 2 North, Range 25 East, W.M.; Section 6, To.mship 
2 North, Range 26 East, W .M. ; Section 36, To.mship 3 North, 
Range 25 East, W.M., and Section 31, Township 3 North, 
Range 26 East, W .M. , thence north along township lines in 
corrrron with Townships 3, 4, and 5 North, Ranges 25, and 
26 East, W.M., to its intersection with the south bank 
of the COlumbia River, thence east along the south bank 
of the COlumbia Ri ve:r.' to the EOint of beginning. 

It shall include all water contained in the shallo.v or deep ground 

water zones of the basalt aquifer system and regulation shall be inposed 

on all uses therefrom. 

10 

It is FURJ.'HER ORDERED that the Ordnance Basalt Ground Water Area 

is closed to further appropriation of ground water. Applications for 

permits to appropriate ground water fran the basalt aquifer system within 

the boundaries of the critical ground water ar,ea will not be accepted. 

11 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that pending application number G-5437 

in the name of Avery Taylor to appropriate ground water fran the 

upper basalt aquifer system shall be approved with a priority as of 

the date of filing providing the application is corrpleted in the form 

and contents as set forth in ORS 537. 615 within a reasonable leng'"...h 

of t.ilne as provided by OR::> 537.620 and further providing that the depth 

of the well be limited to a depth of not rrore than 173 feet. 

12 

It is FURIHER ORDERED that pending application G-5565 in the nane of 

Desert Fanns, Inc. and appliC'.ation G-4510 in the name of .Jane Miller for 

the appropriation of ground water fran the basalt aquifer system are 

rejected. 

13 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that the owners or operators of all wells 

within th,= Ordnance Gravel Critical Ground Water Area and the Ordnanr.e 

71 



Basa.J..t cr~ticaJ. Grour..d Water Area other than weJ.J.s used for exempted 

purposes as set forth in ORS 537.545 (Paragraph 7, Concl.usions), shall 

equip their wells wi. ... h totalizing water rreters, o:mb:ol valves and adequate 

water le,·1el rreasuring facilities, prior to any withdrawal of ground water 

after June 1, 1976. Any well not equipped with the required meter, control 

valve and water level neasuring facilities shall be regulated by the 

water:rnaster and taken out of service until the required works are installed 

and operating properly. The type and installation of said meters, control 

valves and water level measuring facilities shall be subject to authorized 

meter specifications ?nd approval of the Director. Each well o.vner or 

operator shall maintain an accurate rronthly record of the arrount of ground 

water withdrawn from each well. A copy of these water use records shall 

be forwarded to the Water Resources Depart:rrent prior to Decerrber 1 of each 

calendar year on forms furnished by the Director. 

14 

It is F\JRI'HER ORDERED that the irrigation season in the Ordnance 

Basalt Critical Ground Water Area and in the Ordnance Gravel Ground 

Water Area shall extend fran March 10th to October 15th of each calendar 

year. 

15 

:t is FURI'HER ORDERED that the watennaster shall regulate the control 

works on all wells in the above described Ordnance Gravel Critical Ground 

Water Area and the above described Ordnance Basalt Critical Ground Water 

Al:."ea other than those wells wrose use of ground water is specifically 

exerrpted under ORS 537.545, so that the rate and total quantity of ground 

water wL;idrawn does not exceed that all<Med under their ground water 

right certificates or permits. At all ti.Ires the syst:>m shall be operated 

to prevent the waste of water. The procedure for regulating and posting 

such changes shall be as set forth in ORS 540. 040 .. 

16 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that all unlawful diversions of ground water 

within each of the aforesaid critical ground water areas shall cease. 

72 



-34-

To this end, the wate.rnaster shall investigate all known or reported 

violation of ORS 537.535 and shall regulate the control works of all 

wells found to be operating in violation of ORS 573.535 so as to 

prevent such violation. 

17 

It is FURI'HER ORDERED that an annual evaluation of the ground 

water supply in the Ordnance Gravel Critical Ground Water Area and the 

Ordnance Basalt Critical Ground Water Area be made by the Water Resources 

Department for the purpose of evaluating the effectiveness of the 

control provisions set forth in this order. If it is found that the 

control provisions set forth in this order are not sufficient and that 

additional reductions in the annual withdrawal of ground water from 

the alluvial gr0und water sysb=>.m or fran the basalt ground water system 

are necessary to maintain a reasonably stable ground water level, 

such reductions shall be ordered in accordance with the relative dates 

of priority of the water rights of the appropriators from each ground 

wate::r aquifer system. 

Dated at Salem, Oregon this 2nd day of April, 1976. 

73 



No. 

90. 

91. 

92. 

93. 

94. 

23. 
23-A 
23-B 
23-C 
23-D 
23-E 
23-F 
23-G 
28. 
28-A 
28-B 
28-C 
95. 
96. 
97. 
98. 
99. 

100. 
101. 
102. 

ORLNANCE GroUND WATER AREA 
Bl'.\S..2\LT AQUIFERS 

Pennitted Max. Cum. '• .. · j{:c ~· • 

Record Holder='-------Pr--=~-=-0-=~:::.· ty __ Ap..;:N.;..;;;...:.~-· _· __ P_ernu...;:N;..:o..:..~ t--~..:..o::..;·_· __ W.;..;;el;,;_;:;l...:LOc::::..;_;:_a..;.:ti:::.' o..:..n:___o_i_v~_f_:_i_o_n __ A_cr_e_a_..g,_e ____ ~_c_. _f_t_. __ :_· ~-~...:t..:..·-·· •...;...•.•·•."--:;=~-=[==··y ~~) 
·;;,.;.;.:,-~·~~:-';' li~· .• 

Umatilla Arw.f Depot 

•Umatilla Anny DE.pot 

;Umatilla Army Depot 

iumatilla Army Depot 

Umatilla Anny Depot 

. Clark & Bernice Key 

DNight H. Hulet 

C. E. Newquist 
City of Irrigon 
Vern K. Evans 
R. W. Reppert 
Fred Arrlrews 
Avery Taylor 
L.esert Farms, Inc. 
Wayne H. Schnell 

1/5/65 

1/5/65 

1/5/65 

1/5/65 

1/5/65 

4/27/65 

10/4/67 

12/18/67 
8/5/68 
12/27/68 
2/18/69 
4/29/70 
3/1/71 
7/6/71 
7/2/73 

G-3007 

G-3008 

G-3009 

G-3010 

G-3011 

G-3092 

G-3945 

G-4162 
G-4534 
G-4744 
G-4795 
G-5099 
G-5437 
G-5565 
G-6201 

G-2826 

G-2827 

G-2828 

G-2829 

G-2830 

G-2823 

G-3702 

G-3913 
G-4269 
G-4478 
G-4520 
G-4833 

G-5248 

33779 

33988 

33765 

33766 

33989 

42526 

42842 
42328 
42252 

4N/27E-22cad 

4N/27E-18cdb 

4N/27E-19abb 

4N/27E-5baa 

4N/27E-8dad 

3N/27E-4add 
3N/27E-4acc 
3N/27E-4bdc 
3N/27E-4bcc 
3N/27E-5adc 
3N/27E-5acc 
3N/27E-5bdc 
3N/27E-5bcx 
4N/27E-36abb 
4N/27E-36abb 
4N/27E-36aab 
4N/27E-36adc 
5N/27E-30ccc 
5N/27E-19ccb 
5N/27E-20add 
5N/26E-26bcd 
4N/27E-3laab 
5N/26E-25cdb 
5N/26E-26cba 
5N/27E-30cac 

2.00 
Fire Protec. 

0.34 27.0 
1.11 

Fire Protec. 
1.11 

Fire Protec. 
1. 72 

Fire Protec. 
10 GPM 

Fire Protec. 
2.43 

1.86 

0.16 
0.27 
0.04 
0.46 
8.0 
0.5 
1.51 
1.44 

312.l 

149.8 

12.5 

3.2 
36.5 

640.0 
26.0 

120.6 
118.0 

81.0 

960.0 

360.0 

13.l 
109.5 

1920.0 
78.0 

361.8 
354.0 

7296.9 

8720.l 

8729.7 
8839.2 

10759.2 
10837.2 
11199.0 
11553.0 

r-~: 



ORI:NANCE GROUND WATER AREA 
BASALT AQUIFERS 

TABLE II 

Pennitted :Max. Cum. 
Priority Appli. Permit Cert. Diversion Allow. Rights Well ,, No. Record Holder Date No. No. No. Well Location cfs Acreage ac. ft. ac. ft. l:.epth 

71. Oregon-Washington RR 4/17/46 U-199 U-181 15174 4N/27E-20cbc 0.67 
I 

457 
72. Umatilla Anny De.pot 12/19/52 U-571 U-522 30524 4N/27E-5abb 2.26 710 
5. Georgia B. Holzapfel 3/16/53 U-572 U-523 22888 4N/27E-32aca 0.61 49.0 147.0 147.0 123 
5-A 4N/27E-32dxx 310 
6. Roy Gail Holzapf el 3/16/53 u-573 U-524 22889 4N/27E-32acn 0.61 49.0 147.0 294.0 123 
6-A 4N/27E-32dxx 310 

73. Leota Nell Martin 4/3/53 U-580 U-530 31097 3N/27E-8aad 0.25 20.0 60.0 354.0 725 
74. Ernest R. Cramer 4/27/53 U-596 U-549 31194 3N/26E-10cca 0.25 20.0 60.0 414.0 666 
75. Waldo H. Craner 4/28/53 U-600 U-551 31195 3N/26E-10aca 0.25 20.0 60.0 474.0 544 
76. G. W. Redwine 8/9/54 U-736 U-649 23740 4N/27E-36bca 0.50 40.0 120.0 594.0 194 
77. Ernest J. Royster 8/3/55 G-94 G-48 26170 3N/27E-4dab 0.93 74.6 223.8 817.8 185 
78. Umatilla Anny Depot 1/27/58 G-848 G-1017 30525 4N/27E-5baa 0.50 682 
79. Waldo H. Cramer 8/27/58 G-1224 G-1070 34382 3N/26E-10aca 1.89 151.2 453.6 1271.4 544 
80. Lub'ler W. Cramer 3/2/59 G-1402 G-1319 41879 3N/26E-4cac 1.19 219.5 960.0 1778.0 623 

(3/2/59) 
1. 75 

(4/7/59) 
80-A 3N/26E-4dbc Not Drillei 
81. Mildred F. Cramer 3/6/59 G-1411 G-1284 41878 3N/26E-4aad 1.19 283.5 Prim. 960.0 2276.7 680 

4.5 Supp. 
81-A 3N/26E-4bad No log 
82. Ernest Craner 3/ll/59 G-1413 G-1322 34276 3N/26:F ··,.·:.:ca 2.68 274.8 824.4 3101.l 666 
83. Hansell Bros. 6/28/60 G-1778 G-1671 35395 4N/27E-:.::7dad 2.02 1.8 5.4 3106.5 543 
84. Frank L. Warren 12/19/60 G-1896 G-1738 34282 3N/26E-14acd 4.0 320.0 960.0 4066.5 551 

(\ 85. Leota Nell Martin : 0/2/61 G-2125 G-1965 34280 3N/27E-8aad 2.68 300.0 900.0 4966.5 725 
86. Sabre Corporation 2/8/62 G-2229 G-2049 31196 3N/26E-5cbd 3.5 322.8 968.4 5934.9 950 I 

87. Sabre Corporation 8/9/63 G-2678 G-2489 33864 3N/26E-5cbd 2.0 160.0 480.0 6414.9 950 
88. Hansell Bros. 6/5/64 G-2881 G-2672 35396 4N/27E-27cad 3.34 267.0 801.0 7215.9 543 
89. Umatilla Army Depot 1/5/65 G-3006 G-2825 33778 4N/27E-22dbc 0.78 360 



ORI:NANCE GROUND WATER AREA 
ALLUVIAL .AQUIFERS 

Tll.BLE I 

Pennitted Max. cum. 
Priority Appli. Pennit Cert. Diversion Allow. Rights Well 

No. Record Holder Date No. No. No. Well Location cfs Acreage ac. ft. ac. ft. O?pth ~ 

\ 52. Arnold Braat 8/3/71 G-5590 G-4932 4N/27E-20ccc 6.58 526.6 1579.8 25001.0 173 
52-A 4N/27E-20cdc Not Drillei 
53. Hansell Bros. , Inc. 8/12/71 G-5598 4N/27E-28acd 21.6 1724.2 Supp. 126 
53-A 4N/27E-28ddc 127 
53-B 4N/27E-28dad 107 
54. J. w. Aylett 11/16/71 G-5549 G-4929 4N/27E-28bab 0.90 72.18 216.6 25217.6 llO 
54-A for 0.68 cfs 4N/27E-28bdb ll9 

12/3/71 
for 0.25 cfs 

55. Elroy F. McDole 12/13/71 G-5684 4N/27E-28cdd 4.0 310.0 930.0 26147.6 124 
56. Lanib-Weston, Inc. 1/21/72 G-5681 G-4947 4N/28E-19caa 3.3 110 
57. Ronald Baker 1/25/72 G-5710 G-4944 4N/27E-24aca 0.48. 39.4 118.2 26265.8 151 
58. Lamb-Weston, Inc. 2/3/72 G-5720 G-4948 4N/28E-19cac 3.02 137 
59. Malcolm Skinner 2/25/72 G-5734 G-5034 42273 4N/28E-19bcd 0.125 10.0 30.0 26295. 8 126 
60. Bert H. Qui ck 3/1/72 G-5738 G-4972 4N/28E-20bbc 1.0 80.0 240.0 26535.8 
61. John L. King 3/24/72 G-5761 4N/27E-26ddx 0.91 . 72.5 217.5 26753.3 
62. Lyle W. & Jane K. Smith 11/2/72 G-5932 4N/27E-26acb 1.44 115.0 345.0 27098.3 
63. Bert H. Quick 11/7/72 G-5936 4N/28E-20bl:x::: 0.5 26.0 78.0 27176.3 
64. Benjamin J. Newroan 11/29/72 G-5947 4N/28E-20cab 0.4 31. 7 95.1 27271.4 20 
65. IBRue W. Pollcx::k 3/9/7~ G-6023 4N/28E-3labb 0.5 18.0 Prim. 29.0 27496.6 

114.l Supp. 183.85 
66. George H. Barton 3/15/73 G-6040 4N/28E-3lbca 1.6 127.86 383.58 27880.2 Proposed 191 
67. Lamb-Weston, Inc. 4/12/73 G-C069 4N/28E-30bad 2.67 98 
68. Edgar S. & Ellro C. Bloem 6/12/73 G-6058 4N/28E-19dda 0.35 16.6 Prim. 49.8 27930.0 90 

69. Mrs. John W. Rice 6/29/73 G-6196 4N/28E-17bbd 0.84 
10.4 Supp. 

Proposed 115 67.0 201.0 28131.0 
70. Woodrow Walker 7/12/73 G-6225 4N/28E-18dbd 0.7 55.0 165.0 28296.0 102 



ORI:NANCE GROUND WATER AREA 
ALLUVIAL AQUIFERS 

TABLE I 

Pennitted Max. Cum. 
Priority Appli. Pel'.ltlit Cert. Diversion All<:M. Rights Well 

No. Record Holder Date :No. No. No. Well Location cf s Acreage ac. ft. ac. ft. Depth 
{) 

35. Malcolm Skinne.r 3/25/68 G-4291 G-4039 38482 4N/27E-13dbd 0.17 13.8 41.4 14350.1 97 
36. Tom Quick 3/28/68 G-4306 G-4067 42339 4N/28E-20bdd 0.21 16.4 49 .2 14399.3 14 
37. E. T. Johnson 6/3/68 G-4427 G-4171 4N/27E-25dab 0.50 47.7 143.l 14542.4 88 
38. Francis F. McDole 6/21/68 G-4452 G-4395 4N/27E-33acc 4.92 393.3 1179.9 15722.3 120 
38-A 4N/27E-33bab Not Drillei 
38-B 4N/27E-33bdb Not Drillei 
39. Howard Gass 11/21/68 G-4694 G-4413 4N/28E-17cbb 1.35 36.5 Prim. 109.5 15939.5 105 

71.8 Supp. 215.4 
40. MarVin & Frances McDole 10/31/69 G-5026 4N/27E-33aac 3.0 239.0 717.0 16656.5 120 
40-A 4N/27E-33bab Not Drill.sl 
40-B 4N/27E-33bdb Not Drille:i 
41. Thuman M:lrtin 12/30/69 G-5065 G-4775 4N/28E-19caa 1.25 60.0 180.0 16836.5 99 
42. Hansell Bros. , Inc. 1/9/70 G-5209 4N/27E-26bcb 19.88 697 .o Prim. 2091.0 18927.5 108 

893.8 Supp. 
42-A 4N/27E-27bcd 121 
42-B 4N/27E-27cab 135 
42-C 4N/27E-27bda 104 
42-D 4N/27E-26bca 105 
43. Elroy F. .McDole 2/20/70 G-5112 G-4821 4N/27E-33dba 0.88 70.0 210.0 19137.5 ll3 (Abn) 
44. 'ii. M. Huddleston 3/10/70 G-5123 G-4861 4N/27E-13aad 0.96 77.0 231.0 19368.5 101 
45. Donald Clark Key 3/31/70 G-5145 G-4878 4N/27E-30ddd 6.68 313. 7 Prim. 941.l 20309.6 115 

45-A 4N/27E-30ddd 
312.l Supp. 

121 
46. I'hurroan M:lrtin 11/16/70 G-5362 4N/28E-19caa 0.5 40.0 120.0 20429.6 99 
47. l:.eRue W. Pollock 1/12/71 G-5397 4N/28E-30dcc 0.33 26.0 78.0 20507.6 40 

(_ 48. Georgia B. Holzapfel 3/8/71 G-5449 4N/27E-32aca 2.0 160.0 Supp. 123 
49. Lyle W. Smith 3/12/71 G-5460 G-4844 4N/27E-26acb 1.4 112.0 336.0 20843.6 NO I.og 
50. Clarence W. Ruddell 5/11/71 G-5413 G-4931 4N/27E-19ccb 2.7 219.2 657.6 21501.2 112 
50-A 4N/27E-19cda Not orill:rl 
51. ?red Haskins, Jr. 7/9/71 G-5567 4N/27E-29aac 8.0 640.0 1.920. 0 23421.2 Not orille:i 
51-A 4N/27E--29bac Not orille:i 
51-B 4N/27E-29cac Not orillei 
51-C 4N/27E-29dac Not orillE!i 



ORI:NANCE GOOUND WATER AREA 
ALLUVIAL AQUIFERS 

TABLE I 

Permitted Max. Cun. 
Priority Appli. Permit Cert. Diversion AllCM. Rights Well 

No. Record Holder Date No. No. No. Well Location cfs Acreage ac. ft. ac. ft. ~ if 
21. Frances F. McDole 4/10/64 G-2831 G-2822 4N/27E-33adc 4.82 393.3 1179.9 8976.6 96 ti, 
21-A 4N/27E-34bbb 97 (Aini 
21-B 4N/27E-34bac 125 ~lrJ 
22. E. F. McDole 2/4/65 G-3029 G-2782 34281 4N/27E-33cba 1.00 80.0 240.0 9216.6 97 
23. Clark & Bernice Key 4/27/65 G-3092 G-2823 42526 3N/27E-4add 2.23 312.l 936.3 10152.9 80 
23-A 3N/27E-4acc 88 
23-B 3N/27E-4bdc 108 (AfrJ . 
23-C 3N/27E-4bcc 112 (Aini 
23-D 3N/27E-5adc 400 
23-E 3N/27E-5acc 200 (l,lrJ 
23-F 3N/27E-5bdc 145 
23-G 3N/27E-5bcx (AtrJ 
24. Hansell Bros., Inc. 5/16/66 G-3408 G-3197 4N/27E-28aai 2.60 136.8 410.4 10563.3 126 
24-A 4N/27E-28ddc 127 
25. Roy Gail Holzapfel 3/20/67 G-3853 G-3629 4N/27E-32aab 2.0 160.0 480.0 11043.3 106 
25-A 4N/27E-32aba 104 
26. David c. Ralston 7/13/67 G-3991 G-3745 38390 4N/28E-8acc 0.06 4.7 Supp. 14.l 11050.4 
27. Edgar Bloem 9/13/67 . G-4077 G-3868 111941 4N/28E-19ddb 0.145 11.6 Supp. 34.8 11067.8 
~d. !:Might H. Hulet 10/4/67 G-3945 G-3702 4N/27E-36abb 1.86 149.8 449.4 11517.2 ll7 
28-A 4N/27E-36abb 187 
28-B 4N/27E-36aab 213 
28-<: 4N/27E-36adc 185 
29. WoodrCM Walker 10/9/67 G-4103 G-3851 39464 4N/28E-18dbd 2.88 230.0 690.0 12207.2 102 
30. Roy Gail Holzapfel 11/22/67 G-4140 G-3889 4N/27E-32baa 2.0 160.0 480.0 12687.2 ill 
31. Marvin & Frances McDole 11/28/67 G-4144 G-3892 4N/27E-34bbb 4.85 389.5 Supp. 97 (~.Ill): 
32. Thomas E. Huddleston 1/23/68 G-4201 G-3966 38737 4N/28E-18cba 0.30 24.0 72.0 12759.2 93 { 
33. Hansell Bros., Inc. 2/15/68 G-4231 G-3822 4N/27E-27dad 5.0 320.0 Prim. 960.0 13791.2 140 ( 

33-A 4N/27E-27bcd 
260.7 Supp. 

121 
33-B 4N/27E-27cab 135 
33-<: 4N/27E-35cxx Not Drill~ 
34. Malcolm Skinner 2/23/68 G-4246 G-4006 38481 4N/28E-19bcd 2.46 196.5 589.5 14308.7 126 



ORI:NANCE GROUND WATER AREA 
ALLUVIAL AQUIFER:> 

TABLE I 

Perntl.tted Max. Cum. 
Prfority Appli. Perntl.t Cert. Diversion AllCM. Rights Well 

No. Record Holder Date No. No. No. Well Location cfs Acreage ac. ft. ac. ft. Depth _r,.,~ 

{: 
21. Frances F. McDole 4/10/64 G-2831 G-2822 4N/27E-33adc 4.82 393.3 1179.9 8976.6 96 ~.' 
21-A 4N/27E-34bbb 97 (Abn) 
21-B 4N/~7E-34bac 125 (Abn) 
22. E. F. Mc:Dole 2/4/65 G-3029 G-2782 34281 4N/27E-33cba LOO 80.0 240.0 9216.6 97 
23. Clark & Bernice Key 4/27/65 G-3092 G-2823 42526 3N/27E-4add 2.23 312.1 936.3 10152.9 80 
23-A 3N/27E-4acc 88 
23-B 3N/27E-4bdc 108 (Abn) 
23-C 3N/27E-4bcc 112 (Ahn) 
23-D 3N/27E-5adc 400 
23-E 3N/27E-5acc 200 (Abn) 
23-F 3N/27E-5bdc 145 
23-G 3N/27E-5bcx (Abn) 
24. Hansell Bros., Inc. 5/16/66 G-3408 G-3197 4N/27E-28aod 2.60 136.8 410.4 10563.3 126 
24-A 4N/27E-28ddc 127 
25. Roy Gail Holzapfel 3/20/67 G-3853 G-3629 4N/27E-32aab 2.0 160.0 480.0 11043.3 106 
25-A 4N/27E-32aba 104 
26. David c. Ralston 7/13/67 G-3991 G-3745 38390 4N/28E-8acc 0.06 4.7 Supp. 14.1 11050.4 
27. Edgar Bloem 9/13/67 G-4077 G-3868 41941 4N/28E-19ddb 0.145 11.6 Supp. 34.8 11067.8 
28. Dwight H. Hulet 10/4/67 G-3945 G-3702 4N/27E-36abb 1.86 149.8 449.4 11517.2 117 
28-A 4N/27E-36abb 187 
28-B 4N/27E-36aab 213 
28-C 4N/27E-36adc 185 
29. Woodrow Walker 10/9/67 G-4103 G-3851 39464 4N/28E-18dbd 2.88 230.0 690.0 12207.2 102 
30. Roy Gail Holzapfel 11/22/67 G--1140 G-3889 4N/27E-32baa 2.0 160.0 480.0 12687.2 111 
31. Marvin & Frances McDole 11/28/67 G-4144 G-3892 4i.W27E-34bbb 4.85 389.5 Sur:p. 97 (Abn)( 
32. Thomas E. Huddleston 1/23/68 G-4201 G-3966 38737 4N/28E-18cba 0.30 24.0 72.0 12759.2 93 ' 
33. Hansell Bros., Inc. 2/15/68 G-4231 G-3822 4N/27E-27dad 5.0 320.0 Prim. 960.0 13791.2 140 ' 

33-A 4N/27E-27bcd 
260.7 Sur:p. 

121 
33-B 4N/27E-27cab 135 
33-C 4N/27E-35c:xx Not Drilled 
34. Malcolm Skinner 2/23/68 G-4246 G-4006 38481 4N/28E-19bcd 2.46 196.5 589. 5 14308.7 126 



ORINANCE GrolJND WATER AREA 
ALLUVIAL I>QUIFERS 

TABLE I 

Pennitted Ma,.c. Cum. 
Priority Appli. Pennit Cert. Diversion Allnw. Rights Well 

No. Record Holder rate No. No. No. Well Location cfs Acreage ac. ft. ac. ft. Depth 

1. M. M. Mctole 6/2/50 U-365 ll-336 20685 4N/27E-33adc 1.0 79.9 239,.7 239.7 96 ti 
2. E. F. M::D:>le 11/1/50 U-398 U-363 20686 4N/27E-33dba 0.987 79.0 237.0 476.7 No IDg 
3. Scott Chapman 12/15/52 U-544 U-497 26073 4N/27E-28bdb 1.0 80.0 240.0 716.7 119 
4. Syl vanus F. Hoyt 12/15/52 U-545 U-498 26192 4N/27E-28acd 1.0 80.0 240.0 956.7 126 
5. Georgia B. Holzapfel 3/16/53 U-527 U-523 22888 4N/27E-32aca 0.61 49.0 147.0 1103.7 123 
5-A 4N/27E-32dxx 310 (Abn) 
6. Roy Gail Holzapf el 3/16/53 U-573 U-524 22889 4N/27E-32aca 0.61 49.0 147.0 1250.7 123 
6-A 4N/27E-32dxx 310 (Ahn) 
7. Scott Chapman 5/2/55 U-819 U-725 30019 4N/27E-28bdb 2.25 180.3 540.9 1791.6 119 
7-A 4N/27E-28cbd 107 
8. Georgia B. Holzapfel 7/5/55 U-858 U-750 22907 4N/27E-32aca 0.23 18.0 54.0 1845.6 123 
9. Ronald Baker 8/26/55 G-111 G-73 4N/27E-24aca 3.40 272.2 816.6 2Fi62.2 151 

10. Syl vanus F. Hoyt 9/26/55 G-139 G-100 26193 4N/27E-28acd 0.81 64.6 193.8 2856.0 126 
11. E. F. Mctole 3/26/56 G-279 G-190 37054 4N/27E-33cbd 1.0 80.0 240.0 3096.0 111 (Am) 
12. Georgia B. Holzapfel 12/27/56 G-534 G-466 30119 4N/27E-32aab 0.54 43.4 130.2 3226.2 106 
13. Clarence W. Ruddell 6/19/58 G-1011 G-2952 4N/27E-30bca 4.19 335.25 1005.8 4232.0 79 
13-A 4N/27E-30abd 85 
14. Enriqueta Ruddell 6/19/58 G-1012 G-2953 4N/27E-30cca 4.2 335.75 1007.3 5239.3 118 
14-A 4N/27E-30dca 115 
15. Marvin M. M::D:>le 8/28/58 G-1222 G-1069 30133 4N/27E-34bbb 0.95 76.2 228.6 5467.9 97 (Abn) 
16. Roy G. & Georgia B. 6/28/60 G-1777 G-1625 31098 4N/27E-32aca 3.08 111. 0 Prim. 333.0 5800.9 123 

Holzapfel 159.4 Supp. 
16-A 4N/27E-32aab 106 
16-B 4N/27E-32aba 104 
17. Hansell Bros. , Inc • 1/10/63 G-2520 G-2335 4N/27E-26bcb 1.32 105.5 316.5 6117.4 108 

( 18. Thomas E. Huddleston 1/21/64 G-2768 G-2592 34586 4N/28E-18cba 2.34 105.1 Prim. 315.3 6555.9 93 
82.1 Supp. 

19. Malcolm Skinner 3/20/64 G-2809 G-2620 35784 4N/27E-13dbd 1.93 154.3 462.9 7018.8 97 
20. Hansell Bros. , Inc. 3/31/64 G-2818 G-2694 4N/27E-26bcb 3.24 259.3 777 .9 7796.7 108 



700 

6()() 

500 

400 

300 

200 

JOO 

0 

-JOO 

-200 

700 

600 

500. 

400 

300 

200 

JOO 

0 

-JOO 

A 

B 

sN/26E-33bbd 

I 

3N / 26E ·KJr/lxl 
3N/26(-10t:ae 

SN/26E'-34cdc 

\ 
Oat 

------------

4N/2'(E-32doc 4N / 27E-33ooc 4N/27E:-27dod 
3N/:p'E-6oob I 4N/2[E-33cbo / 4N/27E-34bbc \ 

CROSS SECTION 8-B' 

GEOLOGIC CROSS SECTIONS kA' AND 8-81 

VERTICAL SCALE EXAGERATEO X 15 

PLATE 5 

4N/27f:-2Bcdd 

4N/27E:-2Bcac/ 4N/;7E-33aac 
\ I 

A' 

700 

soo", 
-~ 

400 

300 

200 

JOO 

0 

-!00 



T4N 
T 3 N 

ORDNANCE GROUND WATER - Ii AR~ 

;. -~-; E ?. 28 E 

'' 

WELL LOCATION AND 
.. - BOUNDARY MAP 

PLATE_)_. _____ _ 

T.5" 
T.4N 

''i 
' -

'r? 



··· ... 
"' \ 

I I 
<..:iRUUND 

OREGON STATE ENGINEER 
R.26£ n 27E. 

RZ7E. R28E. 

SURFACE GEOLOGY COMPILED F~~~E~·~~:isoN 
ATLAS HA 387 GEOLOGY BY 

' r 

T.4N 

·: 
)j 
j_, 

/' :; ,, 
..... _,,;: ...... :·-"-' t:.·· 



)'• 

· .. '-.. 
•' 

.. i ·-::-

.•.; 

T ~~l , 

·,, 

/ 
J 

..... : .. '-# • . , ' 

,-
:·1 

!.: 

' -- .. J...: .... :·: .•. ' 

,. ' 
"·~. t 

; .(o ~ "'· 

.... ·.:.~- ... ··~-..:. 
.-:.-

DNANCE OR,_, 
OREGON 

WATER GROUND -
ENG;:<E:::.R STATE 

.·' ., 

, L' ,, •· r ·-

/:1REA 

PLATE 

/ ./ 

_.:........,_ ------

T.3N, 

I I 



/'- r· t.' . .... ~ 
i-
! 
"~ 

··-_.;.:;.. ·,<· 'i l ~ . 
~ Io . 

Lli-·, 
·~ .. -,~ \ :;f \:'] 
. ·,... '\ 

,' G 

',, 

·~ . . . 

~··· ' 

" ~ 
> ,., 

(.').:... 
·- l 

·~·,,: 

''•* ~ 

r 3'l . 

: ,. 

;.,~-~ '. 

- ' ""' -· ...,, 1 ~: ... > •• 
l ,- ~ ~ 

;_ 

I 

ORDNANCE GROUND WATER 

OREGON ENGINEER STATE 

- , ,..~ ..... 

AREA 

('-. 
'.:' 

·. :_.;_);__ ~ ----~-:--+- -

MAP 

PLATE 

' ' 

/· 

/' 
I' 

+ 
·, . 

_,., ,., -- --.--
- - -~-.-- --. ~~~-~"T -~--

T.4 N 
T.3 N 

T ~N. 



T4N 
T 3 N 

', .. 

·1':(~·: .. _.·: 

1 
N 

J 

ORDNANCE GROUND WATER 
OREGON STATE ENGINEER 

H 't'..7E 

. :-· 
'""··-

AREA 

-! 

,.,~··'l'"··,,,. 

-·.~..;.::..;-... .:t~r.'·"' 

' -,,, 

.;V 

R ~7 F: 

)· 
I 
I 
! 
i ~ -
I 

/ .-, 

_./. 

'! 

< 
'< . t 

_{ .. '} 

,/: 

SHOWING • .APPROXIMATE \ 
THICKNESS _ OF . 

SATURATED : ALLUVIUM 

IN FEET 

WINTER 1974-1975 

PLATE 4 
. T.:3N. 



 

 

 

Attachment B 



February 5, 2016 

Greg te Velde 
5850 Avenue 160 
Tipton, CA 93272 

Re: Groundwater development for dairy operation and stockwater 

Dear Mr. te Velde: 

Water Resources Department 
North Central Region 

116 S.E. Dorion Avenue 
Pendleton, OR 97801 
Phone (541) 278-5456 

Fax (541) 278-0287 
www.wrd.state.or.us 

I'd like to provide some background information about the local groundwater resource in the area 

around your new proposed dairy located in Section 16 of T3N/R26E, Morrow County, Oregon. The 

subject site is located within the Ordnance Basalt Critical Groundwater Area (Ordnance Basalt CGWA), 

and less than one mile from the Ordnance Gravel Critical Groundwater Area . These groundwater 

management areas were established by Special Order Vol. 27, pp 40-86 in 1976, because significant 

groundwater level declines indicated annual consumptive use exceeded natural recharge of the 

groundwater systems. The order specifies control provisions that prohibited new permitted uses in the 

Ordnance Basalt CGWA and curtailed existing permitted uses in the Ordnance Gravel CGWA to protect 

senior groundwater users. 

Your current water right transfer T-12248, currently in process with the Department, proposes to 

change places of use, types of use and points of appropriation (well locations) authorized by Certificates 

49726, 55317, 49727, 55316. These rights currently authorize irrigation use from two basalt wells, 

MORR 595/590 and MORR 591, both located in the Ordnance Basalt CGWA. Please note that drilling 

new wells before the transfer is reviewed and approved carries a big risk. It is likely well construction 

conditions will be specified by a Department hydrogeologist to ensure the proposed wells will access the 

same aquifer as the existing wells, MORR 595/590 and MORR 591 . Also, the Department will have to do 

an analysis of the transfer to determine if the proposed change can be done without injury or 

enlargement. Additionally, transfer applications are subject to protest by the public. So, there is a lot of 

uncertainty on whether a transfer can be approved until the transfer goes through the entire review 

process required by law and rule. 

Department groundwater use data indicates that average combined use at these two wells is on the 

order of 1000 acre-feet per year. The four certificates noted above allow up to 1029.3 acre-feet per 

year of groundwater use. Total annual groundwater use within the Ordnance Basalt CGWA was 

approximately 3000 acre-feet in 2014. At this level of use, groundwater levels in the basalt are currently 

declining at a rate of about 2 feet per year. This indicates that the groundwater resource is beyond its 

capacity, is sensitive to overdraft, and that a sustainable new use is not available without injury to senior 

groundwater users. The most viable water supply option for the dairy project is a combination of 

surface water and basalt groundwater resulting from the proposed transfer of existing water rights. 

WRD-LLRFPOO 198 



Any new appropriation from the basalts, such as stock water for 30,000 head of dairy cattle, will 

represent a significant new use within the CGWA that will likely injure senior users. A rough estimate 

of dairy cattle drinking water use, assuming 20-50 gallons per head per day, is 672 to 1680 acre-feet per 

year. This represents approximately 22% to 56% increase in pumpage from the Ordnance Basalt CGWA, 

a resource that is already declining at the current level of use. This amount of additional use is not 

sustainable which could cause us to look at re-opening the Ordnance basalt CGWA order and consider 

regulation of the most junior uses, including exempt uses. 

I am happy to participate in a meeting with you and your consulting team to discuss this matter further, 

and look for possible solutions. But I felt it prudent to share this information with you given the scale of 

your proposed project. Please call me at 541.278.5456 or email me at michael.f.ladd@wrd.state.or.us if 

you have any questions or would like to arrange a meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Mike Ladd, Region Manager 

Cc: Greg Silbernagel - Watermaster District 5, via e-mail 

Scott Fairley - Governor's office, via e-mail 

William Mathews, ODA, via e-mail 

Eric Nigg, DEQ, via e-mail 

Carla Mclane, Morrow County, via e-mail 

Ivan Gall - Field Services Division, via e-mail 

Wayne Downey, IRZ Consulting, via e-mail 

WRD-LLRFPOO 199 


	Agenda
	Minutes
	Comment Letters - Carty & Wheatridge
	Public Health MOUs 
	Review RN Supervisor Job Description
	Wheatridge SIP - Partial Assignments Agmt.
	Cattle Guard Procurement
	Grant for Off-System Paths
	Road Report
	HR Quarterly Report
	Public Health Quarterly Report
	Weed Dept. Quarterly Report
	Correspondence



